
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
OCTOBER 2, 2006 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

October 2, 2006 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Brother Ben Jackson – The Church of 
Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints – Troy Ward 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1  No Public Hearings 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Postponed Items 1 

CONSENT AGENDA: 1 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 1 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 2 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 2 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 2 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow 
Removal Rental Equipment Including Operators.................................................. 2 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Street Light 
Installation/Replacement ...................................................................................... 3 

E-5 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain and 
Abandonment of Part of Original Watermain Easement, Woodland Elementary 
School – Sidwell #88-20-04-276-046, Project No. 04.905.3 3 

E-6 Subcontract No. 06-5417/S1 with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of-Way 
Services for the Reconstruction and Widening of Wattles Road, 1,000 Feet East 
and West of Rochester Road – Project No. 01.106.5 3 

E-7 Subcontract No. 06-5418/S1 with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of-Way 
Services for the Reconstruction and Widening of Rochester Road, Torpey to 
Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 4 

E-8 Private Agreement for 5660 New King Street Project No. 06.911.3 – The Learning 
Experience 4 

E-9 Proposed Co-location on Sylvan Glen Communications Tower 4 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 4 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 4 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Ethnic 
Issues Advisory Board; Historic District Commission; Municipal Building Authority; 
Parks & Recreation Board; and Troy Daze Committee 5 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 7 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 7 



 

 

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 226) – Articles IV 
and XXIV – Medical Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 (Low Rise 
Office) District – October 16, 2006 ....................................................................... 7 

b) Proposed Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) and 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Grid4 Communications – 
2107 Crooks Road – October 23, 2006 ................................................................ 7 

G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 7 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 7 

H-1  No Council Referrals 7 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 7 

I-1   No Council Comments 7 

REPORTS: 7 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 7 

a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – May 18, 2006................................ 7 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – September 6, 2006................................ 7 
c) Planning Commission/Draft – September 12, 2006.............................................. 7 
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 19, 2006 ......................................... 7 

J-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 7 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 7 

a) Letter of Thanks to City Manager from Peter Clarkson of Ice Cream Express 
in Appreciation of the Assistance and Efforts of the Troy Daze Staff.................... 7 

b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Robert Leman Shelby Township Chief of 
Police Regarding the Cooperation and Efforts Received from Officer Bednard 
and K9 Ronnie...................................................................................................... 7 

c) Letter of Appreciation to City Manager and City Council from Sandy Jegersky 
Macknis, Chairperson of Student Volunteers for Troy Daze Festival, 
Regarding Troy Daze and the Outstanding Efforts of the Volunteer Students, 
Cindy Stewart, Jeff Biegler, Lt. Scherlinck and the Troy Daze Committee ........... 7 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 8 

a) Resolution from the City of Orchard Lake Village Opposing the K-12 Initiative 
on the November 7, 2006 Ballot ........................................................................... 8 



 

 

J-5  Calendar 8 

J-6  Communication from Purchasing Director Jeanette Bennett Regarding Local 
Preference Issues 8 

J-7  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Papadelis v Troy 8 

STUDY ITEMS: 8 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 8 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 8 

CLOSED SESSION: 8 

L-1 Closed Session 8 

RECESSED 9 

RECONVENED 9 

ADJOURNMENT 9 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 9 

Monday, October 16, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................... 9 
Monday, October 23, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................... 9 
Monday, November 13, 2006 Regular City Council ................................................ 9 
Monday, November 20, 2006 Regular City Council ................................................ 9 
Monday, November 27, 2006 Regular City Council ................................................ 9 
Monday, December 4, 2006 Regular City Council .................................................. 9 
Monday, December 18, 2006 Regular City Council ................................................ 9 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 2, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Brother Ben Jackson – The 
Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints – Troy Ward  

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations      
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items     
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 2, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of September 25, 
2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow Removal 

Rental Equipment Including Operators    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
WHEREAS, On September 19, 2005, a contract to provide seasonal requirements of snow 
removal rental equipment including operators with an option to renew for one (1) additional 
season was awarded to the sole bidder, Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. of Sterling Heights, MI, 
at hourly rates contained in the bid tabulation opened July 25, 2005, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting (Resolution #2005-09-447-E4); and  
 
WHEREAS, Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. has agreed to exercise the one-year option to 
renew under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the 2005 season; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby EXERCISED 
with Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. to provide snow removal rental equipment including 
operators; and Florence Cement Company of Shelby Township and DiPonio Contracting LLC of 
Utica are hereby AWARDED contracts at prices established as a result of an informal quote 
process dated August 8, 2005, and detailed on Appendix A, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That City staff is AUTHORIZED TO EXTEND the 
hourly contract prices to other contractors, after the successful vendors have been employed, to 
speed the snow removal process during times of snow emergencies with contracts expiring 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 2, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

April 14, 2007, and are CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission of properly executed 
contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Street Light 

Installation/Replacement    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to furnish all labor, tools, equipment, transportation services, and 
traffic controls to provide two-year requirements of street, parking lot, and athletic field light 
installation and replacement with an option to renew for one (1) additional year is hereby 
AWARDED to the sole bidder, Harlan Electric Company of Rochester Hills, MI, at unit prices 
and discounts contained in the bid tabulation opened September 13, 2006, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
E-5 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Watermain and 

Abandonment of Part of Original Watermain Easement, Woodland Elementary 
School – Sidwell #88-20-04-276-046, Project No. 04.905.3   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Permanent Easement for Watermain from Avondale School District, 
owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-04-276-046, is hereby ACCEPTED; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO SIGN a 
Quit Claim Deed to complete the abandonment of that part of the original watermain easement 
that is no longer needed; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
easement and deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Subcontract No. 06-5417/S1 with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of-Way 

Services for the Reconstruction and Widening of Wattles Road, 1,000 Feet East 
and West of Rochester Road – Project No. 01.106.5   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That Subcontract No. 06-5417/S1, between the City of Troy and Greenstar & 
Associates, LLC for right-of-way services for the reconstruction of Wattles Road, east and west 
of Rochester Road, is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 2, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

exceed $50,000.00, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
subcontract, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting.  
 
E-7 Subcontract No. 06-5418/S1 with Greenstar & Associates, LLC for Right-of-Way 

Services for the Reconstruction and Widening of Rochester Road, Torpey to 
Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5   

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That Subcontract No. 06-5418/S1, between the City of Troy and Greenstar & 
Associates, LLC for right-of-way services for the reconstruction of Rochester Road, between 
Torpey and Barclay is hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to 
exceed $75,000.00, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
subcontract, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting.  
 
E-8 Private Agreement for 5660 New King Street Project No. 06.911.3 – The Learning 

Experience   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Talon TLE-Troy LLC, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of a public water main, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-9 Proposed Co-location on Sylvan Glen Communications Tower    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-10- 
 
RESOLVED, That the Restated and Amended Acknowledgement and Lease between 
MetroPCS Michigan, Inc. and the City of Troy for co-location on the Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
tower is hereby APPROVED, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the documents on behalf of the City, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 2, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local 
Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Ethnic 
Issues Advisory Board; Historic District Commission; Municipal Building 
Authority; Parks & Recreation Board; and Troy Daze Committee     

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments   
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor (5) – 4 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 06/30/07 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 2, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 &/or 2 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07   (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07   (Student) 
 
Historic District Commission  One member, an architect if available 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Terms  Two members, chosen from a list submitted by a 
  duly organized history group or groups 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
 Term Expires 05/16/09 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 
NOTE: City Council Appointment Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
NOTE: City Council Appointment Term Expires 09/30/09 
 
NOTE: Troy Daze Committee to forward recommendation Term Expires 11/30/06 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/01/07  (Student) 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 2, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

NOTE: Term reflects the correct unexpired term Unexpired Term 11/30/07 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 226) – Articles IV and XXIV – 

Medical Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 (Low Rise Office) District – October 16, 
2006  

b) Proposed Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) and Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Grid4 Communications – 2107 Crooks Road – 
October 23, 2006  

    
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – May 18, 2006 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – September 6, 2006  
c) Planning Commission/Draft – September 12, 2006  
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 19, 2006 
 
J-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to City Manager from Peter Clarkson of Ice Cream Express in 

Appreciation of the Assistance and Efforts of the Troy Daze Staff  
b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Robert Leman Shelby Township Chief of Police 

Regarding the Cooperation and Efforts Received from Officer Bednard and K9 Ronnie  
c) Letter of Appreciation to City Manager and City Council from Sandy Jegersky Macknis, 

Chairperson of Student Volunteers for Troy Daze Festival, Regarding Troy Daze and the 
Outstanding Efforts of the Volunteer Students, Cindy Stewart, Jeff Biegler, Lt. Scherlinck 
and the Troy Daze Committee     

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 2, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) Resolution from the City of Orchard Lake Village Opposing the K-12 Initiative on the 

November 7, 2006 Ballot 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Communication from Purchasing Director Jeanette Bennett Regarding Local 

Preference Issues 
 
J-7  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding Papadelis v Troy 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session   
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2006-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e) – Troy v Premium Construction, and also MCL 15.268 (h) – MCL 
15.243 (g). 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  October 2, 2006 
 

- 9 - 

RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, October 16, 2006........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, October 23, 2006........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 13, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 20, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 27, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 4, 2006 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 18, 2006 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 25, 2006 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, September 25, 2006, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 P.M. 
 
Pastor Vince Messina – Woodside Bible Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine (Absent) 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Stine   
 
Resolution #2006-09-373 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by  Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Stine’s absence at the Regular City Council and Closed 
Session meetings of September 25, 2006 is EXCUSED due to illness.  
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Stine   
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:   
a) Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy to Ann Comiskey 

of the Troy Community Coalition recognizing September 25, 2006 as Family Day, A Day 
to Eat Dinner With Your Children  

b) Mayor Schilling presented a proclamation on behalf of the City of Troy to Pam Brady, 
SOCRRA in recognition of the City’s participation in the America Recycles 2006 
program. 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  No Public Hearings 
 

holmesba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 25, 2006 
 

- 2 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Parking Variance Request – 35 W. Square Lake Road     
 
Resolution #2006-09-374 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, Articles XLIII and XLIV (43.00.00 and 44.00.00) of the Zoning Ordinance provide 
that the City Council may grant variances from the off-street parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance upon general findings that: 

 
1. The variance would not be contrary to public interest or general purpose and 

intent of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
2. The variance does not permit the establishment of a prohibited use as a principal 

use within a zoning district. 
 
3. The variance does not cause an adverse effect to properties in the immediate 

vicinity or zoning district. 
 
4. The variance relates only to property described in the application for variance; and 

 
WHEREAS, Article XLIII (43.00.00) requires that in granting, the City Council shall find that the 
practical difficulties justifying the variances are: 

 
A. That absent a variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property; or 
 
B. That absent a variance, a significant natural feature would be negatively affected 

or destroyed; or 
 
C. That absent a variance, public health, safety and welfare would be negatively 

affected; or 
 
D. That literal enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the 

permitted use and makes conforming unnecessarily burdensome. In this regard, 
the City Council shall find that a lesser variance does not give substantial relief, 
and that the relief requested can be granted within the spirit of the Ordinance, and 
within the interests of public safety and welfare; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds the above-stated general conditions to be present and finds 
the practical difficulty stated above to be operative in the appeal; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Voitek Malinowski for waiver of 
13 additional parking spaces at the development at 35 West Square Lake Road be 
APPROVED; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the variance be conditioned on the following: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 25, 2006 
 

- 3 - 

A. That not more than 1,800 square feet of usable floor space shall be to be developed 
in the building. 

B. That not more than 4 service providers shall be operating at this facility at any one 
time. 

C. That not more than 8 patients shall be scheduled for appointments at any one 
time. 

D. That scheduling records shall be maintained and made available for review by the 
City of Troy upon request. 

 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak, Lambert   
No: Schilling  
Absent: Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
D-2 Rezoning Application (File No. Z 632-B) – Proposed Grand Troy Villas, West Side 

of Rochester Road, North of Wattles Road, Section 15 – CR-1 to R-1T      
 
Resolution #2006-09-375 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the CR-1 to R-1T rezoning 
request, located on the west side of Rochester Road, north of Wattles Road, Section 15, part of 
parcels 88-20-15-477-016 and 88-20-15-477-017, being approximately 2.27 acres in size, to a 
future City Council Regular meeting, following a public hearing and recommendation by the 
Planning Commission. 

 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Stine 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2006-09-376 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Stine 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 25, 2006 
 

- 4 - 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2006-09-376-E-2  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of September 18, 
2006 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 City of Troy Proclamations: 
 
Resolution #2006-09-376-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamation(s) be APPROVED: 
 
a) Family Day – A Day to Eat Dinner With Your Children – September 25, 2006  
b) America Recycles 2006   
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Tee Shirt Contract   
 
Resolution #2006-09-376-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That one-year contracts to provide tee shirts (various types) for City programs 
with an option to renew for one additional year are hereby AWARDED to the low bidders by 
item category, McNish’s Sporting Goods and Trophies of Novi, MI for Items 1, 2, and 3, and 
Kelgraphics of Cadillac, MI for Items 4 and 5, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened September 5, 2006, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting with the contracts expiring September 30, 2007.   
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidder – Ice 

Melt Compound   
 
Resolution #2006-09-376-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide one (1) year requirements of ice melt compound with an 
option to renew for one (1) additional year for the City of Troy and participating MITN (Michigan 
Intergovernmental Trade Network) Purchasing Cooperative Members is hereby AWARDED to 
the lowest bidder meeting specifications, Washington Elevator Co., Inc., of Washington, MI, at 
the unit price contained in the bid tabulation opened August 2, 2006, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of October 31, 
2007.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Bocce and 

Shuffleboard Courts   
 
Resolution #2006-09-376-E-4c 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 25, 2006 
 

- 5 - 

RESOLVED, That a contract for the construction of outdoor bocce and shuffleboard courts at 
the Troy Community Center is hereby AWARDED to the low bidder, WCI Contractors, Inc., of 
Detroit, MI, for an estimated total cost of $83,750.00.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper proposal and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements; and if additional work is required that could not be foreseen, such 
additional work is AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost or 
$8,375.00. 
 
E-5 Approval of Conditioned Purchase Agreement for Right-of-Way Sidewalk Gap 

Project, Sidwell #88-20-15-451-037 – 571 E. Wattles Road   
 
Resolution #2006-09-376-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement to Purchase between Harvey W. Swanson, owner of the 
property having Sidwell #88-20-15-451-037, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-
way for a Sidewalk Gap Completion project is APPROVED in the amount of $62,080.00, plus 
closing costs. 
 
E-6 Relocation and Renovation of the Engineering Field Office – Amendment #1   
 
Resolution #2006-09-376-E-6 
 
WHEREAS, On August 14, 2006, the Troy City Council approved the relocation and renovation 
of the Engineering Field Office at a total estimated project cost of $27,060.80 (Resolution 
#2006-08-324-E-12); and 
 
WHEREAS, After the former owner moved out, due to the condition of the premises, it is 
recommended that the project be amended to include the replacement of the carpeting;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the relocation and renovation of the Engineering Field 
Office Project be AMENDED to include carpet replacement for a new estimated Project cost of 
$35,060.80.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
appointments (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No appointments 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 25, 2006 
 

- 6 - 

Resolution #2006-09-377 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities
Appointed by Council  (9 Regular Members; 3 Alternates) – 3 Year Terms 
 
O. Carlene Geier  (Alternate) Unexpired Term Expires 11/01/06 
 
Ethnic Issues Advisory Board
Appointed by Council (9) – 3 &/or 2 Year Terms 
 
Kelly Jones Unexpired Term 09/30/07 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Stine 
 
F-2 Reimbursement of Relocation Expenses for the City Manager 
 
Resolution #2006-09-378 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
WHEREAS, Section 14 of the City Manager’s employment contract states that: 
 

“The Executive shall be reimbursed for all direct costs relating to the move of his current 
residence to a residence in the city of Troy, Michigan, up to a maximum of $5,000.00.  
Receipts documenting such relocation expenditures shall be provided to the Troy City 
Council which will then authorize the reimbursement of eligible expenses by Resolution.”; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, City Manager Phillip L. Nelson has provided a detailed bill of lading for expenses 
incurred by him for the move of his residence to Troy, Michigan;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy REIMBURSE City Manager 
Phillip L. Nelson for relocation expenditures in the amount of $3,572.12. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Stine 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 25, 2006 
 

- 7 - 

F-3 Reconsideration of Resolution #2006-07-311 – Beech Lane Barrier and Road 
Closure Status 

 
Resolution #2006-09-379 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby DIRECTS City Staff to notify residents on Beech Lane 
before the Council acts on a new resolution that would open Beech Lane. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Stine 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums: None Submitted   

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Final – June 13, 2006  
b) Downtown Development Authority/Final – July 19, 2006 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – August 9, 2006  
d) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – August 15, 2006 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – August 22, 2006  
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – September 13, 2006 
g) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust/Draft – September 13, 2006 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports: 
a) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – August 31, 2006  

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  September 25, 2006 
 

- 8 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Thanks to Detective Reynolds from Peter Munoz in Appreciation of the Efforts in 

the Preparation and Instruction at the Identity Theft Training Sessions  
b) Letter of Thanks to Officer Charles Villerot and Alliance Mobile Health from Patricia 

Chapman Regarding the Assistance and Response Time  
c) Letter of Thanks to Kathy Bobick from Noreen Facca in Appreciation of Her 

Professionalism and Assistance  
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session    
 
Resolution #2006-09-380 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Hooters v. Troy. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Stine 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:33 P.M. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:40 P.M. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:10 P.M. 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



Page 1 of 3 

 
September 19, 2006 
 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
   Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – 

Snow Removal Rental Equipment Including Operators 
Background: 
 
 Seasonal requirements of snow removal rental equipment including operators 

with an option to renew for one (1) additional season was approved by Troy 
City Council on September 19, 2005. (Resolution #2005-09-447-E4) 

 The award was made to the sole bidder, Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. of 
Sterling Heights at hourly rates contained in the bid tabulation opened July 
25, 2005. 

 Rizzo Services and Casar Management were also awarded contracts as a 
result of an informal quote process from August 8, 2005. 

 City staff received authorization to extend the hourly contract prices to other 
contractors, after the successful bidders have been employed, to speed the 
snow removal process during times of snow emergencies. 

 Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. has agreed to exercise the option to renew 
under the same prices, terms, and conditions as the original contract.  

 Rizzo Services does not wish to renew and Casar Management failed to 
respond after several attempts were made to contact them. 

 In an effort to maintain adequate service coverage, City staff determined two 
other contractors were interested in providing snow removal rental equipment 
including operators at 2005/2006 levels, Florence Cement of Shelby 
Township and DiPonio Contracting of Utica. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Streets Division for snow 

and ice control for local, major and county roads. 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



Page 2 of 3 

 September 19, 2006 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Snow Removal Rental Equipment  
 
 
 
Legal Considerations:  
 
 ITB-COT 05-33, Seasonal Requirements of Snow Removal Rental Equipment 

Including Operators with an Option to Renew for one (1) Additional Season 
was competitively bid and opened July 25, 2005 with one vendor responding, 
in accordance with Chapter 7 of the City Code. 

 Due to the variability of weather and fluctuating equipment availability, many 
companies do not bid on snow removal services.  Therefore, the City hires 
additional contractors based upon the emergency provision powers of the City 
Manager. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Snow emergencies often require hiring additional companies to assist in the 

snow removal effort.  (Goal VI) 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in 

supplying services for the City of Troy.  (Goal I) 
 Pre-approval to extend contract prices to other contractors in times of snow 

emergencies, after the successful bidder has been employed, could speed 
the snow removal process.  (Goal I, VI) 

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one 

additional season with Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. at unit prices listed in 
Appendix A. 

 Authorization is also sought to extend the 2005/2006 hourly rates and 
establish contracts with Florence Cement Company and DiPonio Contracting 
LLC. 

 Both contractors have provided quality and dependable service in the past. 
 
 
 
 
sl/S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 10.02.06 – SR3 – SnowRemovalRentalEquipment Letter.doc 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 

  Number of Units Company can Provide 
Equipment Hourly 

Rate/Unit
Sterling 
Topsoil 

Florence 
Cement 

DiPonio 
Contracting 

Pickup w/minimum 8ft 
Blade 

$85.00  2  

Road Grader – 20,000 
GVW 

$150.00 1 3  

Truck w/10ft Snowplow $110.00    
Front end Loader – 5yd 
capacity 

$140.00 4 5 2 

Front end Loader – 3yd 
capacity 

$130.00 1  1 

Front end Loader – 2yd 
capacity 

$130.00   2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











September 8, 2005  
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Re: Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 and Informal 

Quote Process: Contract Award – Snow Removal Rental 
Equipment Including Operators 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Bid proposals were opened July 25, 2005, for seasonal requirements of snow 
removal rental equipment including operators with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional season.  These services are on a contract basis to supplement City 
forces during severe snowstorms.  City management recommends awarding the 
contract to the sole bidder, Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. of Sterling Heights, 
MI, at unit prices listed below.  
 
In addition, subsequent to the bid opening, an informal quote process was 
conducted to obtain prices for the remaining necessary snow removal equipment 
without bid prices.  It is recommended that the City establish contracts with Rizzo 
Services of Warren and Casar Management of Warren, at the following unit 
prices -     

     Number of   Hourly  
       Units       Rate/Unit 
Sterling Topsoil & Grading 

Front End Loader – 5 yd capacity     4   $140.00 
         - 3 yd capacity    1   $130.00 

Road Grader – 20,000 GVW (secondary)   1   $150.00 
 
Rizzo Services 

Front End Loader – 4 yd capacity    5   $175.00 
Pickup with minimum 8 ft blade      5   $  85.00 
Road Grader – 20,000 GVW (primary)    1   $125.00  
Truck with 10 ft snowplow     5   $110.00 

 
Casar Management 

Front End Loader – 10 yd capacity    1   $225.00 
       -  2 yd capacity    3   $130.00 

Pickup with minimum 8 ft blade   10   $  85.00 
 
PRIMARY / SECONDARY SUPPLIER 
Due to equipment problems experienced last season with the road grader 
equipment provided by sole bidder Sterling Topsoil & Grading, it was deemed in 
the best interest of the City that a primary and secondary supplier be named for 
this item.  Therefore, the road grader item was added to the informal quote 
process and awarded accordingly. 
 

 
 

1 of 2 
 



September 8, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Contract Award – Snow Removal Rental Equipment 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
Many companies do not bid on the snow removal service due to the variability of 
weather, the economy and fluctuating equipment availability.  However, snow 
emergencies often require hiring additional companies to assist in the snow 
removal effort.  While any one specific company may not be available, others 
are, and we have hired them based upon the emergency provision powers of the 
City Manager.  Pre-approval to extend contract prices to other contractors, after 
the successful bidders have been employed, could speed the snow removal 
process.  It is our recommendation that the contract be extended to other 
contractors, on an as needed basis, and impose the awarded hourly rates to 
these contractors at the time of a snow emergency. 

 
SUMMARY 
Brooks and Rizzo who have provided seasonal snow removal services in the 
past were contacted to discuss their reasons for not participating in the formal bid 
process.  Brooks indicated that they intended to participate but missed the 
deadline.  Other vendors contacted indicated that travel times were too long 
and/or they were not adding to their existing customer base. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the operating budgets of the Streets Division for snow and 
ice control for local, major and county roads. 
 
 
93 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
57 JDE Vendors Mailed Notices 
  1 Bid Response Rec’d 
  2 Informal Quotes Rec’d 
  1 No Bid 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Public Works Administrative Aide 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 05-33
Opening Date -- 07-25-05 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 8/25/05 SNOW REMOVAL RENTAL EQUIPMENT

VENDOR NAME: * STERLING
TOPSOIL &

GRADING INC

PROPOSAL: SNOW REMOVAL RENTAL EQUIPMENT INCLUDING OPERATORS
HOURLY HOURLY HOURLY HOURLY

ITEM NO. OF PIECES OF EQUIPMENT AVAILABLE RATE RATE RATE RATE
1. FRONT END LOADER: MINIMUM SIZE 3 YDS*

5 YD CAPACITY (4) 140.00$         
3 YD CAPACITY (1) 130.00$         
OTHER SIZE: 10 YARD

  4 YARD

PICKUP WITH MINIMUM*
8 FT BLADE BLANK
(to assist loaders in clean up only)

2. ROAD GRADER: MINIMUM SIZE - 6 WHEEL*
20,000 GVW (1) 150.00$         
OTHER SIZE

3. TRUCK WITH 10FT SNOW PLOW* BLANK

*Rates quoted shall include all costs: Fuel, Insurance, Operators,
   Travel time expenses, etc. 

INSURANCE:
CAN MEET XX
CANNOT MEET

CONTACT INFORMATION
Hours of Operation 7AM-6PM
24 Hr Emergency Phone  Yes or No (586)264-3000

(586)354-8427
TERMS: NET 30 DAYS

WARRANTY: BLANK

DELIVERY DATE: ON CALL

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES

NO BID: PROPOSAL: Seasonal Requirements of Snow Removal Rental Equipment
 Troy Clogg Landscape Assoc Including Operators with an Option to Renew for One (1)

Additional Season
ATTEST:
 Emily Frontera * DENOTES SOLE BIDDER
 Charlene McComb
 Tom Rosewarne ___________________________
 Linda Bockstanz Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director
G:\SnowRemovalRentalEquipITB-COT 05-33



 
 
Date  September 25, 2006 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder – Street Light 

Installation/Replacement  
  
Background: 

• On September 13, 2006, bids were received to provide two (2) year requirements for street light 
installation/replacement with an option to renew for one additional year.  

• Harlan Electric Co. of Rochester Hills, MI was the sole bidder. 
• 55 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with one bidder responding, and one late bid received. 

 
Financial Considerations: 

• Funds are available in the Public Works Street Light capital account # 401448.7978.010. 
  

Legal Considerations:  
• ITB-COT 06-30, Street Light Installation/Maintenance was competitively bid and opened with one 

bidder responding. 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in supplying street light 

installation/replacement services for the City of Troy.  
• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 

Policy Considerations: 
• Street Light Installation/Replacement often requires an electrical contractor to assist in the removal and 

installation of the City’s lighting system. (Goal IV) 
• Moving this work forward would improve public safety and also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal VI) 
 

Options: 
• City management of the Public Works department recommends awarding the contract to the sole 

bidder, Harlan Electric Co. of Rochester Hills, MI for an estimated total cost of $14,035.00 to replace 
one pole, at unit prices and discounts contained in the bid tabulation.  

 
 
Mbf  S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 10.02.06 – SR1 – Street Light Installs Letter 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



CITY OF TROY                          ITB-COT 06-30
Opening Date -- 9-13-06 BID TABULATION          Pg 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 9/15/06 STREET LIGHT INSTALLATION/REPLACEMENT

VENDOR NAME: ** Harlan Electric
Company

CHECK # -- 473333370
CHECK AMOUNT -- $500.00

EST Lump Sum Total
ITEM # QTY/YR                DESCRIPTION Price for One

1A. 1 ea Remove Street Light Pole - 415.00$            
(Ornamental Pole)

1.B. 1 ea Remove Street Light Pole - Wood 420.00$            

2. 1 ea Remove Concrete Foundations 915.00$            

3. 1 ea Installation of Concrete Foundations 1,635.00$         

4.A. 1 ea Install 40' Light Ornamental Pole 900.00$            
           with mast arms - one fixture

4.B. 1 ea Install 40' Light Ornamental Pole 1,170.00$         
           with mast arms - two fixtures

5.A. 1 ea Install 40' Light Wood Pole 1,060.00$         
           with mast arms - one fixture

5.B. 1 ea Install 40' Light Wood Pole 1,330.00$         
           with mast arms - two fixtures

6. 1 ea Install Pole w/Control Box/Service 3,650.00$         
           connections

7. 1 ea New installation of 40' Street Light Pole 2,540.00$         
           with concrete foundation
ESTIMATED TOTAL ** 14,035.00$      

ADDITIONAL ITEMS, IF REQUIRED UNIT PRICE
8. 1 ea Cut & Weld Street Light Base H Base 325.00$            
9. 120 L.F. 1 1/2" Rigid Plastic Conduit Sch. 40 12.75$              

10. 160 L.F. No. 8 AWG Cable Red 2.75$                
11. 160 L.F. No. 8 AWG Cable Black 2.75$                
12. 40 L.F. No.10 AWG Cable Bare 2.60$                
13. 2 ea Photo Cell 34.00$              
14. 1 ea 40' Wood Light Pole 730.00$            

14. Hourly labor rate per Crew HOURLY RATE
A) Regular Time 150.00$           
B) Overtime Time 210.00$           
C) Holiday Time 270.00$           

15. Hourly rate for Journeyman Electrician HOURLY RATE
A) Regular Time 70.00$             
B) Overtime Time 100.00$           
C) Holiday Time 130.00$           

16. Hourly rate for Backhoe/Operator HOURLY RATE
A) Regular Time 130.00$           
B) Overtime Time 160.00$           
C) Holiday Time 195.00$           



CITY OF TROY                         ITB-COT 06-30
Opening Date -- 9-13-06 BID TABULATION         Pg 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 9/15/06 STREET LIGHT INSTALLATION/REPLACEMENT

VENDOR NAME: ** Harlan Electric
Company

17. Hourly rate for Service Truck with Crane HOURLY RATE
A) Regular Time 105.00$           
B) Overtime Time 130.00$           
C) Holiday Time 165.00$           

18. Non-Contract Replacement Parts: Discount + or - +   10%
Parts List: Blank
Dated: Blank

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operation  7:30 AM to 4 PM
24-Hr Phone # 248-452-0004

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: 1 Year - Labor

RESPONSE TIME: 48 Hours

EXCEPTIONS: Performance Bond
Excluded in pricing

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH ALL LABOR, TOOLS, EQUIPMENT, TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 
AND TRAFFIC CONTROLS TO PROVIDE TWO-YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF STREET,
PARKING LOT, AND ATHLETIC FIELD LIGHT INSTALLATION/REPLACEMENT WITH
AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE ADDITIONAL YEAR

** DENOTES SOLE BIDDER

ATTEST:
Vicki Richardson _______________________________
Jenetta L. Simmons Jeanette Bennett
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 06-30 Light Installation & Replacement



campbellld
Text Box
E-05















campbellld
Text Box
E-06





































campbellld
Text Box
E-07





































campbellld
Text Box
E-08









TO: Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: September 28, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Proposed co-location on Sylvan Glen communications tower  
 

 

 
 
On April 17, 2006, the Troy City Council approved an Acknowledgement and 

Lease, allowing MetroPCS Michigan, Inc. to co-locate on the communications tower 
located at Sylvan Glen Golf Course.  This co-location required reinforcement to the 
structure, since there are four existing providers on the tower, in addition to the City.  
MetroPCS was aware that it would need to reinforce the structure to allow for the 
proposed co-location to occur, and has submitted plans that have been reviewed by the 
City.  The reinforcement will not increase the height of the tower, but instead will add 
support beams to the existing tower.  This reinforcement may also allow for one additional 
provider or an expansion of the City of Troy’s equipment on the Tower.  The tower is 
currently owned by A T & T, and therefore MetroPCS has reached a separate agreement 
with A T & T for this requested co-location.  The tower will eventually be the property of the 
City of Troy, pursuant to the terms of the Lease Agreement.   

 
The initial Acknowledgement and Lease required construction to start on or before 

June 30, 2006.  Unfortunately, this did not occur due to some unanticipated delays in the 
plan review and some glitches with procuring the required insurance coverage.  As a 
result, MetroPCS has requested a Restated and Amended Acknowledgement and Lease.  
This Restated and Amended Acknowledgement and Lease extends the date of the 
commencement of construction to October 30, 2006.  It also slightly modifies the 
insurance requirements, which have been reviewed and accepted by Troy’s Risk 
Manager.  Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, MetroPCS will pay the same amount of 
rent to the City that the other providers are currently paying.  They have also agreed to be 
bound by the same terms and conditions as the other providers, with the exception of the 
slight modification of the insurance requirements.  These terms are reflected in the 
Restated and Amended Acknowledgement and Lease and its attachments.  

 
A proposed resolution approving this Restated and Amended Acknowlegement 

and Lease between the City of Troy and MetroPCS Michigan, Inc. is provided for your 
consideration.   

 
As always, if you have any questions, please let me know.  
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-09



































































 
 
 
 
September 26, 2006 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: 

ZOTA 226) – Articles IV and XXIV – Medical Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 
(Low Rise Office) District 

 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the October 16, 2006 City Council meeting. 
 
• The draft zoning ordinance text amendment would permit the retail sales of medical 

equipment by right in the O-1 Office district.  It also defines the term retail sale of medical 
equipment.   
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on September 12, 2006, and 
recommended approval of the proposed text amendment.  This is a City Management 
initiated zoning ordinance text amendment.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• The proposed text amendment would expand the range of uses permitted within the O-1 

Low Rise Office District. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



Policy Considerations: 
 
• A text amendment to the O-1 Office Building provisions would apply to all O-1 property in 

the City.  City Council should determine whether this is an appropriate use in the O-1 
Office Building zoning district. 

 
 
Options: 
 
• City Management recommends approval of the proposed text, as recommended by 

Planning Commission. 
 
• No action until public hearing on October 16, 2006. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 226 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 226 Medical Goods in O-1\Announce CC Public Hearing 10 02 06.doc 
 
 
 



PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 226) 
City Council Public Hearing Draft 

Text Amendment for Retail Sale of Medical Equipment 
in the O-1 Zoning District 

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 39 
OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Amendment to Chapter 39 
 
Chapter 39 of the City of Troy Code is amended by adding sections 04.20.108 and 24.20.05, 
to read as follows: 
 
04.20.108 MEDICAL EQUIPMENT SALES AND SERVICE:  A facility engaged in the retail 

sale and / or rental of medical equipment for home use, including the provision of 
related professional assistance. 

 
 
24.00.00 ARTICLE XXIV   O-1 OFFICE BUILDING DISTRICT 
 
24.20.05 Medical equipment sales and service. 
   
 
Section 2.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ____ 
day of ________________, 2006. 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 226 Medical Goods in O-1\ZOTA 226 CC Public Hearing Draft.doc 



 

 
 
September 28, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing for Grid4 Communications – 2107 

Crooks Rd 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Grid4 Communications has requested the establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD), and the issuance of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for their move and 
expansion to 2107 Crooks.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The financial considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The legal considerations cannot be determined at this time. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Policy considerations will occur at the Public Hearings. 

 
Options: 
 
 The public hearings will be on October 23, 2006 to conform to State law.  

 
 
NL/nl H’I.F.T\Grid4\AnnouncePH10.02.06 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01b



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                        May 18, 2006 
PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, May 
18, 2006 at the Troy Community Center, Staff Conference Room.  Chairman, Tom Krent called 
the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
Present:  Merrill Dixon, member  Jan Zikakis, member 
   Gary Hauff, member  Tom Krent, chairman 
   Tod Gazetti, member  Jeff Stewart, member 
   Meaghan Kovacs, member  Brad Henson, student representative 
   Jeff Biegler, staff   Stuart Alderman, staff 
   Carol K. Anderson, staff 
 
Absent:  Orestes Kaltsounis, Kathy Fejes (called in), Stu Redpath (called in) 
 
Visitors:  Megan Otzen, Lauren Eavenson 
 
Resolution # PR - 2006 - 05 - 009 
Moved by Zikakis 
Seconded by Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes from March 16, 2006 are approved as submitted.   
 
Yeas:   7  Abstained: 1 (Tom Krent) 
Nays:   None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Parks and Recreation Budget – The department budget was reviewed.  Some notes: 
• Large increase in local tree and major tree due to ash tree removal and 

replacement. 
• Utility costs have risen in the past year.   
• Revenue for recreation is growing. 
• Alternative sources of revenue have increased in recent past 
• More than 350 jobs for adults and young adults are provided by the department.   

B. Golf Division Budget – The golf course budget was reviewed.  Some notes: 
• Maintenance is remaining in house at Sanctuary Lake to lower costs.   
• Sanctuary Lake has projected a significant increase in revenue. 
• Fuel costs have risen for both golf courses.   

C. Aquatics Budget – The aquatics budget was reviewed and there are no significant budget 
changes.  The weather continues to influence sales and attendance at the aquatic center.  
The Aquatic Center is 15 years old and repairs and maintenance increase as the facility 
ages.   

D. Capital Budget – The capital budget was reviewed.   
E. Fee Waiver Policy for Military Personnel – The fee waiver policy was discussed and the 

following action was taken.   
 
Resolution # PR - 2006 – 05 – 010 
Moved by Hauff 
Seconded by Dixon 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                        May 18, 2006 
 
RESOLVED, That the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, to show support for active 
military residents, recommends that the City Council approve the “Fee Waiver Policy for 
Military Personnel on Leave.”   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Promotional Material for Hotels – The general managers for hotels in Troy have been 
contacted to offer passes to their guests at the resident rate.  At the end of summer the 
hotels will be billed for any guests that used our facilities and we can track how many 
were sold.  Brochures of our facilities were given to them for display.   

 
Member Comments 
Tom Krent asked about the fan in the men’s restroom at Boulan Park.  It will be checked to be 
sure it is working properly.   
 
Jan Zikakis asked about the prohibited tree list in Troy and why the Bradford Pear was listed on 
it.  Jeff explained that as the tree ages it breaks apart and is not stable.  It has also been 
overplanted and the population of this variety needs to be limited in the event of another pest 
outbreak.   
 
Jan also asked about the sale of trees and whether the City would have a program like they 
used to.  Jeff explained that the City would not however, the State of Michigan has partnered 
with DTE to purchase trees for the counties that were quarantined.  Distribution sites will be set 
up and 200 trees per site will be available.  Residents of the quarantined counties can order the 
trees this fall at half the cost and DTE will pay the other half.  The trees will be available for 
planting in the spring of 2007.   
 
Staff Reports 

A. Directors Report – The Tree Ordinance has been undergoing revision for a number of 
years and is now before City Council.  Developers may have increased costs because 
this Ordinance will require them to preserve or replace prohibited species.  A list of 
recommended trees is given to the developers.   

 
Staff has met with the Planning Department regarding the Masterplan.  In addition, a 
committee has been formed of various City department staff to increase and improve 
trails/pathways around the city.  The county is also interested in the development of the 
trails/pathways for getting people to the county trails.   

 
B. Recreation Report – The Aquatic Center Open House is the weekend of May 20 and 21st.  

It will open Memorial Day weekend.   
 

The City website is currently under revision to make it more user friendly.   
 
Flynn Park will be getting some upgrades – the asphalt will be replaced, drainage, shrubs 
and plants will be added.   

 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                                        May 18, 2006 
 

C. Parks Report – Irrigation will be installed at the Community Center and Jaycee Park.   
 
The east tennis courts at Boulan Park (5,6,7,8) are currently being rebuilt.  Courts 
1,2,3,and 4 are scheduled for rebuilding this fall.   
 
Annuals are being planted at the Aquatic Center, Civic Center and on Big Beaver Road.   

 
 
Resolution # PR – 2006 – 05 - 011 
Moved by Stewart 
Seconded by Henson 
 
RESOLVED, That the meetings for June, July and August are canceled unless an issue 
necessitates a meeting.  If so, a special meeting will be called.   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution # PR – 2006 – 05 – 012 
Moved by Hauff 
Seconded by Zikakis 
 
RESOLVED, To excuse absent members who have provided notification.   
 
Yes:  All 
No:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Tom Krent, Chairman 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Mary Williams, Recording Secretary 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, September 06, 2006, in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Rick Sinclair 
   Tom Rosewarne  
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Marlene Struckman, Housing Inspector Supervisor 
    
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF AUGUST 2, 2006. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of August 2, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. SANTA, 2245 ALEXANDER, for relief 
of Chapter 83 to install a picket fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 36” 
to 42” picket fence in the front setback adjacent to the property line along Paris.  This 
property is a double front corner lot.  As such, it has front yard setback requirements 
along both Alexander and Paris streets.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in the 
front setbacks at this location to 30” in height. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this property previously obtained a variance for a 42” fence 
along the rear yard in the front yard setback along Paris. 
 
Mr. Santa was present and stated that he wanted the fence for the safety of his child 
and that it would go with the fence at the rear of the property.  He said there is a chain 
link fence owned by the City of Troy that is over 4’ high. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained if he installed the fence along the northwest corner it could be 
higher but he would have to go along the house. 
 
The petitioner stated he would not go past the front of the home and it is non-obscuring. 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that a fence 30” in height would be permitted, but the petitioner is 
requesting a 6” to 12” variance. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked what the chain link fence was for. 
 
Mr. Richnak responded that it was for the Henry Graham Drain.  It is owned by Oakland 
County but is maintained by the City of Troy. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about the fence that was at the rear of this property.  Mr. Stimac 
stated that it also required a variance to erect a 42” high fence for that portion in the 
front yard setback along Paris. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if the petitioner would consider reducing the length of the fence 
approximately 10’-15’.  The petitioner stated he wanted it to look good. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked why they left a gap in the fence that would allow children to get out 
of the yard.  The petitioner stated he was planning to park a car there in the future and 
that he can view his child in the yard from his kitchen window. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the petitioner accessed his rear yard through the garage because 
the intent of the ordinance is to have an open space in the front.  He stated a fence right 
along the property line tends to be a wall.  He said if you would move the fence back to 
the side garage door it would leave an open space to Alexander and Paris.  He also 
recommended to move the fence 5’ off the sidewalk to allow for the grass to be 
maintained.   
 
The petitioner stated that his wife is the one who wants the fence and that she was 
planning on being at the meeting.  He said she would be here in 5-10 minutes. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if anyone objected to postponing this item until the end of the 
meeting to allow Ms. Santa to appear.  There were no objections.  Mr. Dziurman 
postponed the item until the end of the meeting. 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  BARRY CASTILLOUX, 90 CHOPIN, for relief of 
the 2003 Michigan Residential Code to finish a basement. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 2003 Michigan Residential 
Code to alter the basement of the existing home to create two bedrooms with a 6’-6” 
finished ceiling height.  The plans also show an existing unfinished area of the 
basement that will be used as an access corridor to the bedrooms.  This unfinished area 
has a 6’-7” ceiling height and includes a dropped I-beam and ductwork with a 6’-1” 
ceiling height.  The 2003 Michigan Residential Code, section R 305 requires a 7’  
minimum ceiling height in habitable area including corridors and 6’-6” clear height under 
dropped beams and ducts. 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

 
ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Castilloux was present.  Mr. Dziurman asked about an emergency window for this 
location.  The petitioner stated there would be two, one in each bedroom.  He also 
stated that he needed the bedrooms because his wife operates a Daycare out of the 
home.  He said that currently his two children (10 year old son and 8 year old daughter) 
share a bedroom because the other bedroom is being used as a play area for the 
children his wife takes care of.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if he was going to finish the ceiling.  The petitioner stated he was 
going to put in acoustical tiles.  He currently has 6’-7” of floor to ceiling.  Installing the 
material he is using will lower the height to 6’-6”.  He stated the home was built between 
the years of 1936 to 1939.  He said he would be using glow in the dark tape adhesive 
on the beams and duct so no one would hit their head.  Also, he stated he would use 
caution tape in areas where the glow in the dark material would not work unless it was 
dark.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked about putting in emergency lighting for when power fails.  The 
petitioner agreed to do anything that would make the area safe for his children. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what the quality of the area was if the space was to be used as 
bedrooms.  Is the area dry and free of any leaks or dampness?  He also he asked if the 
area leading to the bedrooms would remain clear of any storage?   
 
The petitioner stated the area would remain clean because he uses his garage as a 
storage area.  He presented photos showing the bedroom that is currently used as a 
play area.  The second photo was the one bedroom used by his son and daughter.  He 
needs to have the living area and two bedrooms for the daycare business.  He currently 
has 6 children but the State has licensed his home for 12 children.  The petitioner stated 
he would need all of the first floor living space to accommodate 12 children. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that if it were a requirement to have 35 square feet per child then 
for 6 children you would only need 210 square feet of living space. The petitioner stated 
he still wanted to finish the basement. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what material was he going to use.  The petitioner stated he is using 
2 X 4 with ½” drywall. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if he was going to use hard wire smoke detectors that were 
interconnected.  The petitioner stated he had already spoken to the Electrical Inspector, 
Joe VanSumer about the possibility of hard wiring the smoke detectors. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Barry Castilloux, 90 Chopin relief of the 2003 Michigan Residential 
Code to alter the existing home to create two bedrooms in the basement with 6’-6” 
finished ceiling height and the unfinished area that includes a dropped I-beam and 
ductwork with 6’-1” ceiling height. 
 

• Smoke detectors must be installed with the current building code and to 
be hardwired and interconnected. 

• Emergency lighting must be installed so that it doesn’t project out where 
someone would get injured. 

 
Mr. Richnak stated he wanted to amend the motion to include the area coming off duct 
work would be at a 45 degree angle instead of a 90 degree angle.   
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this basement finish is not quite like ones that were previously 
heard by the board in that they are not proposing to enclose the existing ductwork and 
beam.  He wanted to be sure that the Board was not mandating that they be enclosed 
possibly further reducing the clear height. 
 
The petitioner did agree to add an angled the portion adjacent to the beam to a 45-
degree angle. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
(As Amended) MOVED, to grant Barry Castilloux, 90 Chopin relief of the 2003 Michigan 
Residential Code to alter the existing home to create two bedrooms in the basement 
with 6’-6” finished ceiling height and the unfinished area that includes a dropped I-beam 
and ductwork with 6’-1” ceiling height. 
 

• Smoke detectors must be installed with the current building code and to 
be hardwired and interconnected. 

• Emergency lighting must be installed so that it doesn’t project out where 
someone would get injured. 

• Provide angle portion below the beam to be 45 degrees. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 (continued) –  
 
Mrs. Santa arrived at the meeting and Mr. Dziurman explained to her that before her 
arrival, her husband stated why they were requesting the variance for the fence.  Mrs. 
Santa stated they need the fence higher than 30” for their son’s safety.   

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                       SEPTEMBER 6, 2006 

ITEM #2 (continued) –  
 
Mr. Santa stated that an additional 6” in height should not be a problem. 
 
Mr. Kessler wanted to know if the petitioner would consider moving the fence back up to 
the side garage door so there would not be an open space in the fence, which would 
then allow installing the fence all the way to the house. 
 
The petitioners stated they wanted to leave the opening in the fence for parking a 
vehicle. 
 
The Chairman opened the public hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There were 3 written responses in the file. Two approved of the installation of the fence 
and one stated that the drivers on Alexander approaching Paris would have limited 
visibility for seeing small children or small vehicles including bicycles. 
  
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Santa, 2245 Alexander relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
picket fence 36” to 42” high in the front setback adjacent to the property line along Paris. 
 

• Erect fence along Alexander to 1’ east of the garage service door. 
• Erect fence 4’ off of the sidewalk on the private property. 
 

Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:10 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
              

Marlene Struckman, Acting -Recording 
Secretary 

 5



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Vice 
Chair Schultz at 7:32 p.m. on September 12, 2006, in the Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Mary Kerwin 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat (arrived 8:30 p.m.) 
Mark J. Vleck 
David T. Waller 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-141 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat (arrived 8:30 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
3. MINUTES 
 

Resolution # PC-2006-09-142 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the August 22, 2006 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
published. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat (arrived 8:30 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 714) – Proposed Senior Housing 
Development, North of Long Lake, East side of I-75, Section 9 – From R-1B (One 
Family Residential) to R-EC (Residential Elder Care) District 
 
Mr. Miller announced a request from the petitioner to postpone the matter for 90 
days was received by the Planning Department on September 7.  Mr. Miller 
reported a valid protest petition relating to the rezoning request was submitted to 
the Planning Department, and that copies were distributed to the Planning 
Commission.  He indicated it is at the discretion of the Planning Commission to 
postpone the matter, or act upon the rezoning request.   
 
[A person from the audience handed what appeared to be a traditional petition to 
Mr. Miller.  Vice Chair Schultz said the item would be noted and filed.]   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
P. J. Cumming of 5375 Daniels, Troy, was present.  Ms. Cumming spoke in 
opposition to the proposed rezoning request and the postponement of the item.  Ms. 
Cumming also addressed the proposed site plan.   
 
Charles Jackson of 405 W. Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Jackson 
spoke in opposition to the proposed rezoning request, and provided an additional 
sheet of signatures to the protest petition.  He addressed traffic concerns, safety of 
school children, and the number of senior developments in the City.  Mr. Jackson 
thinks it might be intentional on the part of the petitioner to request postponements, 
so residents would eventually forget about the proposed development.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz indicated a postponement allows a petitioner additional time to 
work on outstanding items related to the proposal, noting in this case the petitioner 
might be attempting to gain access to a major thoroughfare. 
 
Mr. Littman asked if the petitioner met with the residents. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Jackson replied that, to his knowledge, there has been no meeting with 
residents.   
 
Rob Shouhayib of Choice Development, 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was 
present.  Mr. Shouhayib respectfully requested a postponement to allow additional 
time to address the concerns of the residents and details of the plan.  He indicated 
a meeting with residents on Daniels was held, and they would be happy to meet 
with any other residents.  Mr. Shouhayib said a status report could most likely be 
provided within the next couple of weeks. 
 
Mr. Vleck asked the petitioner if they are attempting to get direct access to a major 
thoroughfare. 
 
Mr. Shouhayib replied that access to a major thoroughfare is an option under 
serious consideration.  
 
Mr. Vleck said he would not be in favor of another postponement.  Mr. Vleck said a 
status report on the proposed development prior to tonight’s meeting would have 
been appreciated, and noted a lot of people are affected by the proposed 
development.   
 
Mr. Khan said it would be appreciated if a request to postpone were received by the 
Planning Department to allow enough time to let residents know prior to the 
scheduled public hearing.   
 
Mr. Waller indicated he would be in favor of honoring the petitioner’s request to 
postpone.  He has confidence in the petitioner’s ability to produce good quality 
projects, based on their history of development in the City.  
 
John Major of 5215 Daniels, Troy, was present.  Mr. Major spoke in opposition of 
the proposed rezoning request and postponement.  He confirmed the petitioner met 
with residents, but he did not believe all residents who would be affected were 
invited to the meeting.  Mr. Major said the petitioner shows disregard for the 
residents as relates to the lack of information and notice of intention to postpone.   
 
Vince Pangle of 5235 Wright, Troy, was present.  Mr. Pangle spoke in opposition to 
the proposed rezoning request.  He addressed the Zoning Ordinance standards for 
rezoning requests and the petitioner’s presentation to request a postponement.   
 
Millie Francuck of 5661 Wright, Troy, was present.  Ms. Francuck spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  She addressed the safety of school 
children and property contamination.  Ms. Francuck suggested taking the matter to 
the residents as an advisory question. 
 
Brooke Hertzberg of 233 McKinley Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Hertzberg spoke 
in opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  She addressed the negative impact 
the proposed use would have on the residential neighborhood.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Peter Horan of 5520 Wright, Troy, was present.  Mr. Horan spoke in opposition of 
the proposed rezoning request.  He suggested that a vote of the audience be taken 
to determine how many residents are for or against the rezoning request.   
 
Ms. Vleck addressed the parliamentary procedure followed by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
It was the recommendation of Ms. Lancaster that the Planning Commission not 
conduct a show of hands, for or against, the proposed rezoning request, and 
provided a brief explanation of the basis of her recommendation.   
 
Richard Hughes of 1321 Roger Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Hughes addressed 
the advisory vote option, and potential access to the subject property via a service 
drive along Interstate 75.   
 
Mr. Wright briefly addressed a service drive along Interstate 75. 
 
Gloria DePoorter of 100 Stalwart, Troy, was present.  Ms. DePoorter spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  She asked what evidence the City 
needs to prove the proposed use would not work in the neighborhood.  Ms. 
DePoorter submitted two photographs of parked cars on a residential street within 
the proposed development.   
 
Mr. Miller provided an explanation of the decision-making role of the Planning 
Commission.  
 
Mr. Littman addressed the advisory role of the Planning Commission to City 
Council.  Mr. Littman said he would be in favor of denying the rezoning request, and 
noted he voted against postponement of the item previously.  He said there is 
nothing the petitioner can do to make the proposed development fit the Zoning 
Ordinance or Master Plan.     
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would support denial of the rezoning request because it does 
not warrant rezoning. 
 
Mr. Wright said he would support denial of the rezoning request also, indicating the 
proposed development did not make sense to him since the initial presentation.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-143 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to R-EC rezoning request, located on the north side of Long 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Lake, east side of I-75, within Section 9, being approximately 8.6 acres in size, be 
denied, for the following reasons: 
 
 The application does not comply with the Future Land Use Plan  
 The application does not meet the Location Standards of Section 19.40.00.   

 
Yes: Kerwin, Khan, Littman, Vleck, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Schultz, Waller 
Absent: Strat (arrived 8:30 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said the denial does not stop the petitioner from going forward with 
the proposed development; the petitioner will simply submit another application.   
 
Mr. Waller agreed with Ms. Drake-Batts’ comments.  He thinks it is reasonable to 
give the petitioner another opportunity to resolve the major issues of the proposed 
development.   
 
Vice Chair Schultz agreed with comments made by Ms. Drake-Batts and Mr. Waller.   
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief explanation of the administrative procedure for Planning 
Commission recommendations to City Council, and informed residents to contact 
the Planning Department for further information.  

 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV 148-C) – Daley Street, 
South of Big Beaver, East of Rochester Road, abutting Lots 28 and 33 of 
Supervisor’s Plat No. 11 Subdivision, Section 26 – Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) 
District (the abutting parcels) 
 
Mr. Miller identified handouts relating to the street vacation request that were 
distributed to members prior to the beginning of tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Miller 
reported the Planning Department received a written request to postpone the item 
to the October Regular meeting from Ken Demark.  He noted Mr. Demark’s 
relationship to the petitioner is unknown.   
 
Mr. Miller said a review of the street vacation request determined the proposed 
vacation could negatively impact access to the property for large trucks backing 
onto the property to make pick-ups or deliveries.  Mr. Miller asked for a clear 
understanding of the petitioner’s need for the proposed street vacation.   
 
Mr. Waller asked if the Planning Director or Assistant City Attorney had any advice 
with respect to the lawsuit filed on the street vacation request.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Ms. Lancaster said the City is convinced the subject street is a public road, and the 
lawsuit would have no bearing on the Planning Commission’s determination of the 
matter.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Paul Asker of Asker, Clos & Perlmuter, 35551 Ford Road, Westland, was present to 
represent the petitioner.  Mr. Asker addressed his September 11, 2006 
correspondence [copy provided to the Planning Commission prior to the beginning 
of tonight’s meeting] and provided a detailed synopsis of the pending litigation 
relating to the proposed street vacation.  He stated the vacation would allow Behr 
America to provide additional parking.  He indicated that Daley would continue to be 
a driveway in which truck traffic could turn around.  Mr. Asker said Behr America 
does not intend to fence or gate the vacated street.   
 
[Mr. Strat arrived at 8:30 p.m.] 
 
Mr. Miller recommended a cross access easement that would essentially give 
permission to others to trespass Behr property.   
 
Mr. Asker said he would discuss the matter of cross access easement with his 
client.   
 
Robert Easterly of 189 E. Big Beaver, Troy, was present.  Mr. Easterly represents 
Protofab Corp. located at 2835 Daley.  He clarified that Ken Demark, who requested 
a postponement of the item, is one of the principals of Photofab Corp.  Mr. Easterly 
addressed his correspondence dated July 6, 2006 and September 11, 2006, copies 
of which were distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the beginning of 
tonight’s meeting.  Mr. Easterly provided a detailed synopsis of the pending lawsuit 
and detailed the direct and negative affect the proposed street vacation would have 
on his client’s business.   
 
There was general discussion on parcel ownership, underground utilities, 
trespassing concerns, discrepancies in the legal description, City Management’s 
recommendation for denial, and justification of postponing the matter.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-144 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this matter to the October 2006 Regular meeting to allow 
petitioners to start court proceedings and for petitioners to look at the possibility of 
providing a turnaround easement.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Vleck stated he would vote affirmatively on the motion.  He would like the 
opportunity to review the material that was distributed to the members prior to the 
beginning of the meeting.   
 
Yes: Kerwin, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright  
No: Drake-Batts 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said she did not need 30 days to make a decision on the matter.   
 

___________ 
 
Vice Chair Schultz requested a recess at 9:11 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:23 p.m. 

___________ 
 

[Chair Strat resided.] 
 
7. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 117-C) – Proposed Private School, Proposed St. 

Mark Christian Academy at St. Mark Coptic Orthodox Church, West side of 
Livernois, South of Kirk Lane (3603 Livernois), Section 21 – R-1B 
 
Mr. Miller reported the petitioner requested in a written communication dated 
September 11, 2006, to postpone the matter to the October 2006 Regular meeting.   
 
The petitioner was not present.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-145 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the matter to the December 2006 Regular meeting. 
 
Discussion on the motion on the floor. 
 
Ms. Kerwin addressed traffic congestion at this location and expressed concerns 
with safety.  She asked if City Management could study the site with respect to 
traffic and potential implications in the interim of another postponement.   
 
Mr. Miller said he would ask the City’s Traffic Engineer to conduct a minor traffic 
study at this location.  He will keep the members advised of the findings.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Vote on the motion on the floor. 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. REZONING REQUEST (Z 719) – Proposed Troy Medical Office, West side of 
Livernois, North of Big Beaver, Section 21 – From R-1B (One Family Residential) to 
O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner requested a postponement to the November 2006 
Regular meeting to pursue the option of a conditional rezoning.  Mr. Miller said no 
action is necessary.   
 
Ms. Lancaster recommended entertaining a motion to postpone the item so the 
record would be clear. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the petitioner indicated during conversations with the Planning 
Department that he might request a review of the item at a study session.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-146 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item until the November 2006 Regular meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 932) – Proposed Stonewood Pangborn Industrial Building 
Addition, Southeast Corner of Coolidge and Industrial Row (2963 Industrial Row), 
Section 32, M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to approve the 
site plan as submitted contingent upon providing the required 9.5 feet of width for all 
the parking spaces.   
 
The petitioner, Benny Spielmann of 13211 Northend Avenue, Oak Park, was 
present.  Mr. Spielmann indicated Mr. Pangborn, part owner of Stonewood 
Pangborn, and the project architect were also present.  He addressed the site plan 
revisions that were made in consideration of Planning Commission comments from 
the August Regular meeting.  Mr. Spielmann indicated he had no problem 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

eliminating one parking space, and that would allow the necessary space to widen 
all the parking spaces to the required 9.5-foot width.   
 
Alternate options discussed related to obtaining a variance from the Board of 
Appeals (BZA) for a reduction in parking, or a reduction in width of the total parking 
spaces.   
 
Members Vleck and Littman indicated their support of the proposed development by 
eliminating one parking space.   
 
Mr. Miller briefly addressed handicapped parking.  
 
Chair Strat said the proposed site plan is cramped, but he is supportive of new 
development coming into the City.  
 
Mr. Spielmann provided copies of the revised site plan, signed and sealed by his 
architect, which shows the elimination of one parking space and the reconfiguration 
of 9.5 foot-wide parking spaces.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-147 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the proposed 
Stonewood Pangborn Industrial Building Addition, located on the southeast corner 
of Coolidge and Industrial Row, located in Section 32, on approximately 0.92 
acres, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted, and that the Planning 
Commission allows a reduction of one parking place along the north edge of the 
building from seven (7) parking spaces to six (6) 9.5 foot wide parking spaces, 
pursuant to Section 40.20.12, with the following condition.   
 
1. That the eliminated parking space is turned into a greenbelt. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 337) – Existing Clark Station, 
Southwest corner of Rochester Road and South Blvd. (6951 Rochester Road), 
Section 3, Zoned H-S (Highway Service) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Management to approve the special use request and site plan as submitted with 
conditions.  City Management recommends deleting the north drive on Rochester 
Road, providing protection for the new canopy supports or eliminating them, and 
providing a 30-inch screen wall in lieu of the 10-foot wide greenbelt along those 
portions of South Boulevard and Rochester Road where a 10-foot greenbelt is not 
provided.  Mr. Savidant reviewed Section 39.70.05, as relates to the material of 
screen wall, and Section 23.30.02 (A), as relates to curb cuts for ingress and egress 
to service stations.   
 
William Quinlan of Quinlan Associates, 31325 Harper Avenue, St. Clair Shores, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Quinlan asked for approval of the site plan 
as submitted.  He indicated the proposed second curb cut on Rochester Road 
would better facilitate interior traffic and not impede right-turning traffic from South 
Boulevard to Rochester Road.  Mr. Quinlan said the petitioner has concerns that the 
required screen wall would hinder maneuverability.   
 
There was discussion on alternate layouts, preservation of the existing islands, fill 
locations for underground tanks, loss of trees, and curb cuts as relates to 
accessibility and maneuverability.   
 
No one present indicated they wished to speak on this application. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-148 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 23.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the existing 
Clark Station, located at the southwest corner of Rochester Road and South Blvd., 
located in Section 3, within the H-S zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. Delete the north drive on Rochester Road. 
2. Provide protection for the new canopy supports, or eliminate those supports. 
3. Provide a 30-inch screen wall in lieu of the ten-foot wide greenbelt along 

those portions of South Boulevard and Rochester Road where a 10-foot 
greenbelt is not provided. 

 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 338) – Proposed Auto 
Detailing and Repair Facility, East side of Souter, South of Maple Road (1402 
Souter), Section 34, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant reported the petitioner submitted a request in writing, dated September 5, 
2006, to postpone the item to the October Regular meeting. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-149 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the subject item be postponed to the October 10, 2006 Regular 
meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
12. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 339) – Proposed Health Club, 

South side of Big Beaver, West of Rochester Road (former Home Expo Bldg.), 
Section 27, Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use request, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use request as submitted.   
 
There was discussion on the site plan comments provided by the City’s Landscape 
Analyst.  It was assumed that the intent of the comments is that any missing, dying 
or dead landscape material would be replaced with new landscape material.   
 
David Huntor of Professional Engineers Associates, 2430 Rochester Court, Troy, 
was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Huntor said Monte Rosenberger of 
DeBartolo Development was present also.  He indicated the petitioner is purchasing 
the former Home Depot parcel that is approximately 9 acres, and would be 
responsible for the landscaping within that parcel.  Mr. Huntor said DeBartolo 
Development is under contract to purchase the entire building and is looking at 
proposed retail uses for the remainder of the building.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Mr. Schultz asked if the subject parcel would be included if the Planning 
Commission specified in the Special Use Approval that landscaping must be 
brought up to the standards of the originally approved site plan. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it would.   
 
Mr. Littman asked if there would be enough parking on site for a health club.   
 
Mr. Savidant replied that the applicant meets all parking requirements of the Zoning 
Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked how the percentage of required landscaping for the subject parcel 
would relate to the required landscaping for the entire site.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated the petitioner is seeking only a special use approval, and no site 
improvements are planned at this time.   
 
Mr. Miller said the site is considered as one development at this time.  He indicated 
the Assessing Department would require the petitioner to meet all Zoning Ordinance 
requirements prior to granting a request to split the lot.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-150 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval, pursuant to Section 21.30.03 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Health Club, located on the south 
side of Big Beaver, west of Rochester Road, located in Section 27, within the B-2 
zoning district, is hereby granted.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 271-B) – Amendment of 
Special Use Approval, Existing Rainbow Rascals Child Development Center, West 
side of Crooks, South of Investment Drive (4533 Crooks), Section 17, Zoned R-1B 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report.  It is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the amendment of the Special 
Use Approval to permit the overnight parking of two commercial vehicles on the 
property, subject to conditions.  City Management recommends limiting the 
overnight parking to two vehicles with a maximum capacity of 15 passengers and 
parking the vehicles on the two most northeastern parking spaces.  Photographs of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

two vehicles the petitioner would like to use were distributed to the members prior to 
the beginning of tonight’s meeting.     
 
The petitioner, Patrick Fenton, owner and operator of Rainbow Development, 17500 
W. Eleven Mile Road, Lathrup Village, was present.  Mr. Fenton said the Troy 
facility currently does not have any vehicles parked on site.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
John Vidosh of 1077 Whisper Way Ct., Troy, was present.  Mr. Vidosh spoke in 
opposition of the request.  Mr. Vidosh was present at the meeting when Rainbow 
Rascals received their Special Use Approval and recalls the two conditions to the 
approval.  He stated the petitioner has violated those conditions and have not been 
good neighbors, as relates to a second dumpster and parked bus.  Mr. Vidosh 
addressed the location of parked vehicles should tonight’s request be granted.  He 
also expressed distaste for the windmills placed on the lawn by the children and the 
length of time the windmills have remained.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Fenton provided explanations for the violations cited by Mr. Vidosh, and 
indicated they were appropriately handled.   
 
Mr. Wright said the reason Planning Commission did not allow overnight parking of 
commercial vehicles when a Special Use Approval was granted was because the 
child development center is situated in the R-1B residential zoning district.   
 
Chair Strat agreed with the resident’s comments on the windmills at this site.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-151 
Moved by: Waller 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That conditions of Special Use Approval, pursuant to Section 10.30.03 
of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the existing Rainbow Rascals Child 
Development Center, located on the west side of Crooks Road, south of Investment 
Drive, located in Section 17, within the R-1B zoning district, are hereby amended to 
permit the overnight parking of two commercial vehicles on the property, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
1. There shall be a maximum of two vehicles with a maximum capacity of 15 

passengers each parked on the parcel overnight.  These vehicles shall be 
parked on the two most northeastern parking spaces on the parcel. 

 
Yes: Drake-Batts, Kerwin, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Vleck, Waller 
No: Strat, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 14 - 
 

Mr. Wright voted no because the center is located in a residential zoning district.  
 
Chair Strat concurred.   

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 226) – 
Articles 04.00.00 and 24.00.00 – Medical Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 
(Low Rise Office) District 
 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating 
to medical equipment sales and service in the O-1 district.  He indicated that City 
Management concurs with the direction of the Planning Commission.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
A short discussion followed. 
• Special use approval versus permit by right. 
• Domino affect to retail uses. 
• Intensity of proposed use. 
• Impact on office district. 
• Intent of City Council direction. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-152 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV and XXIV, pertaining to revisions to permit Medical 
Equipment Sales and Service in the O-1 (Low Rise Office) District, as printed on the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, be approved. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Khan, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Members Drake-Batts, Littman, Schultz and Vleck indicated their preference to 
allow medical equipment sales and service by special use approval.   
 
There was a brief discussion on existing medical uses in the O-1 zoning district.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 15 - 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
15. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 883-C) – Amendment to Consent Judgment – Heartland 

Health Care Skilled Nursing Facility, South side of South Blvd., East of Livernois, 
Section 3 – Consent Judgment 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the request to amend the Consent Judgment by providing an 
additional 16 parking spaces on site.  It is the recommendation of City Management 
to approve the revised site plan as submitted.  Mr. Miller indicated the revisions 
would not affect compliance with any Zoning Ordinance provisions.  It was noted 
that the Planning Department report incorrectly states the parking spaces would be 
incorporated on the southwest side of the building; it should read the southeast 
side.   
 
The petitioner was present in the audience.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-153 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to a proposed Amendment to Consent 
Judgment, for a revised site plan, located on the south side of South Boulevard and 
East of Livernois Road within Section 3, within the O-1 zoning district, be approved. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

16. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 909) – Landowner – Proposed Amendment to Consent 
Agreement – Starbucks Restaurant, Northwest corner of Big Beaver Road and 
Crooks Road, Section 20 – H-S (Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Miller reported a request to postpone the item to the October 2006 Regular 
meeting was received today from Joseph M. Rogowski, Berry Reynolds & 
Rogowski, PC, on behalf of the petitioner.  It was noted the petitioner requested a 
postponement from the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) for requested variances 
relating to the proposed development.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 16 - 
 

Mr. Miller provided a history of the item.  He indicated that City Management was 
not provided enough time to consider the application and make a recommendation, 
but identified some concerns after a cursory review of the site plan.   
 
Ms. Lancaster explained the administrative process for a Consent Agreement 
amendment.  She indicated the Planning Commission would review the site plan 
before a presentation of the complete package to the City Council.  The request to 
amend the Consent Agreement and site plan approval would be considered and 
determined by the City Council.   
 
There was discussion on the relationship of the proposed use with implementation 
of the Big Beaver Corridor plan.   
 
Resolution # PC-2006-09-154 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone this item to the October 2006 Regular meeting.   
 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

17. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 
The members and City Management overwhelmingly welcomed back Mr. Wright! 
 
Mr. Wright said it was good to be back! 
 
Ms. Drake-Batts addressed traffic congestion on the northwest corner of Big Beaver and 
Crooks, near the retail center [Einstein Bagels].  She asked if a “no left turn” sign on to 
Crooks could be erected.   
 
Mr. Miller said he would bring it to the attention of the City’s Traffic Engineer.   
 
Mr. Schultz, former member of the City’s Traffic Committee, said placement of directional 
signs is based on the number of accidents.   
 
Mr. Waller addressed the landscaping on Crooks and Big Beaver, in front of Kelly 
Services.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 12, 2006 
  
 
 

 - 17 - 
 

Ms. Kerwin announced the dates/times for the grand opening/open house/ribbon cutting of 
the new Boys and Girls Club.   
 
Ms. Lancaster said it was good to see everybody! 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed agenda items on the next study session meeting.  He reminded 
members that a venue must be determined for the November 7, 2006 Special/Study 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Vleck commented on the number of postponements at tonight’s meeting, and the 
length of time it took to conduct the meeting.   
 
Mr. Littman reminded members of the upcoming Kresge Foundation tour. 
 
Chair Strat addressed the progress made on streamlining the PUD process.   
 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 11:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2006 PC Minutes\Draft\09-12-06 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

The Chairman, Michael Hutson, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M., on Tuesday, September 19, 2006 in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:    Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mitchell Grusnick, Residential Plan Analyst 
   Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF AUGUST 15, 2006 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of August 15, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Courtney, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell 
Abstain: 2 – Fejes, Wright 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINTUES OF AUGUST 15, 2006 AS WRITTEN CARRIED 

ITEM #2 - VARIANCE REQUEST.  SAIF JAMEEL, 3031 CROOKS ROAD, for relief of 
the Ordinance to construct a new commercial building with a drive up window accessory 
to a restaurant use proposed in the building.  Section 23.25.01 of the Troy Zoning 
Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre in size in order to have a drive-up 
window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  This site is made up of two 
separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new commercial building.  A majority of this property is located within the H-
S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  The plans submitted indicate that the development 
will include a drive up window accessory to a restaurant use proposed in the building.  
Section 23.25.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre 
in size in order to have a drive-up window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning 
District.  This site is made up of two separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size.  
The Board denied a similar request in April of 2006.  This request is different in that the 
current plan eliminates the connecting drive with the property to the north. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of August 15, 2006 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that a letter was received by the Building Department asking that this 
item be withdrawn. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 

MOVED, to accept the withdrawal request of Saief Jameel, 3031 Crooks Road, for relief 
of the Ordinance to construct a new commercial building with a drive up window 
accessory to a restaurant use proposed in the building.  Section 23.25.01 of the Troy 
Zoning Ordinance requires a site that is at least one acre in size in order to have a 
drive-up window facility in the H-S (Highway Service) Zoning District.  This site is made 
up of two separate parcels that total only .53 acres in size. 

• At the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MARSHA BUTKOVICK OF JEFFREY A. SCOTT 
ARCHITECTS, P.C., 3339 ROCHESTER, (proposed address), for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a new Dunkin Doughnuts restaurant with a drive-up facility at the 
southwest corner of Rochester Road and Vanderpool, on a parcel of land that is only 
.96 acres in size where Section 21.30.02 requires at least one acre; and is also 
proposing that this proposed building result in a 43’ front setback to the east property 
line where Section 30.20.05 requires a 75’ front yard setback. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new Dunkin Doughnuts restaurant with a drive-up facility at the southwest 
corner of Rochester and Vanderpool.  This property is in the B-2 (Community Business) 
Zoning Classification.  Section 21.30.02 requires sites for restaurants with drive-up 
facilities in B-2 Districts to be at least once acre in size.  The site plan submitted 
indicates that the site is only .96 acres. 
 
In addition, Section 30.20.05 requires a 75’ front yard setback in B-2 Districts.  The site 
plans indicate a front setback of only 43’ to the east property line. 
 
Burt Kassab was present and stated that they have been working on this project for 
quite some time and originally proposed this restaurant with a driveway approach on 
Vanderpool.  The petitioner found that there was a school bus stop on Vanderpool and 
the neighbors were very upset about the possibility of increased traffic on their street.  
The petitioner removed the Vanderpool driveway approach leaving the Rochester Road 
driveway approach.  They have also moved the driveway further from the corner of 
Rochester and Vanderpool and both the entrance and exit are one-way drives.  Mr.  
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Kassab also stated that they have a legally binding deed restriction that will prohibit a 
driveway onto Vanderpool.   The west side 30’ of the property has been dedicated to E-
P (Environmental Protection) Zoning and they are trying to move the building as far east 
as possible so that it will have a minimal impact on the neighbors.  The property on the 
north side of Vanderpool is zoned B-3, which has a 40’ front setback, and this proposed 
building will have a 43’ front setback.  The lot itself has a lot of awkward corners and is 
irregular in shape.  Mr. Kassab indicated that they have had a number of neighbor 
meetings and feel that they have reached a workable solution both for themselves and 
the neighbors.  They have moved the speaker box to the south side of the building, 
which is next to a shopping center and therefore would have little impact on the 
neighbors.  The maximum seating in the restaurant will be twenty.  Required parking is 
nineteen spaces, and they will provide thirty-one spaces.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if they knew how many cars would be going through this drive-thru 
during peak hours.  Mr. Steve Collins, a representative of Dunkin Donuts said that it 
would depend on the traffic in the area and would be very difficult to give a number at 
this time although it could be between 100 and 120 cars during the peak morning hours. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if a variance would be required if the building were moved back.  
Mr. Kassab said that they could move the building farther back on the property and 
would not require a variance, but they were trying to work with the neighbors and this is 
the reason they moved the building as far east as they could.  They have spent a lot of 
time studying traffic flow and believe this is the best solution. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that in the past Dunkin Donuts was always a place that people 
parked their cars and went in and either ordered take out or sat down and ate, and 
wondered how important this drive-thru window would be.  Mr. Collins said that it will 
depend on the site and it is difficult to say how much traffic will be using the drive-thru. 
Typically 60% to 80% of business is done through the drive-thru. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that a variance goes with the land, and wondered if a McDonald’s would 
be able to go into this location.  Mr. Forsyth stated that a variance runs with the land so 
that if a McDonald’s came in they would be entitled to that variance. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that he was unfamiliar with the menu of a Dunkin Donuts and asked what 
type of food was offered.  Mr. Kassab stated that the menu consists of bagels, muffins, 
donuts, breakfast sandwiches and coffee.  The menu is very limited.  Mr. Fejes then 
asked if lunch was offered.  Mr. Kassab stated that they do not have a very large 
sandwich menu.  Mr. Collins confirmed that the menu is primarily a breakfast menu. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the drive-thru would be shared since this a dual operation, which 
includes Baskin & Robbins.  Mr. Kassab said that was correct and said that plenty of 
parking would be available for people that wish to come into the restaurant. 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Laura Balyeat, 965 Vanderpool, was present and stated that she lives almost directly 
across from the house that is to be demolished.  Ms. Balyeat stated that she has been 
to a number of meetings over the last eighteen months and the neighbors have lost the 
fight to have this property re-zoned.  Ms. Balyeat stated that she is very concerned over 
the safety of the children in the area and does not want the noise or extra traffic that this 
business will generate.  No one has informed the neighbors what the hours of operation 
will be.  Ms. Balyeat stated that she does understand that seventeen (17) of her 
neighbors did approve of this request.  Ms. Balyeat said that she wants the setback to 
be at whatever will be the safest for the children in the area.   
 
Ms. Balyeat also stated that the Ordinance indicates that a drive-thru requires at least 
one-acre and since this site does not meet that requirement a variance should not be 
granted. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked Ms. Balyeat to explain her concerns for the safety of the children.  Ms. 
Balyeat said that she felt it would be up to the Board to determine what the safest 
solution would be for the children in the area.  She is concerned about the increase in 
traffic on the street, cars lined up on Rochester Road, and believes that people trying to 
turn into the location will create a traffic hazard. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the difference would be between Dunkin Donuts and Dunkin 
Donuts with a drive-thru.  Ms. Balyeat said that she believes there will be an increase in 
traffic and wants the Board to determine what the safest location would be for this 
restaurant.  Mr. Courtney said that he does not believe the setback will influence safety 
in any way.    
 
John Billinger, 943 Vanderpool was present and stated that since this project has 
started he has tried to suggest alternatives to prevent encroachment into residential 
areas.  Mr. Billinger is concerned about the impact of noise and negative effect on the 
value of residential property.  Mr. Billinger said that he had asked the developer if they 
could build the restaurant without a drive thru or build it in a strip mall.  He was told that 
Dunkin Donuts Corporate Office would not allow a structure to be built without a drive-
thru or in a strip mall.  After looking at the new plan with the 30’ of E-P Zoning, the City 
Council members were impressed with the plan and approved the re-zoning application.  
The building still comes too far into the subdivision and the neighbors will see nothing 
but a wall.  He does not believe that the developer worked with the residents and never 
really considered changing their original plan. 
 
Richard Wiles, 975 Vanderpool was present and lives directly across the street from this 
project and does not understand why the neighbors object to this drive-thru.  Rochester 
Road will be widened in the future and a median will be put in.  Baker School busses 
children in and out so you do not see children hanging out at the different sites.   

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Wiles has lived next to a wall for thirty years and likes it as it gives him privacy.  The 
big issue was the entrance on Vanderpool, but as soon as the petitioner removed this 
driveway, Mr. Wiles did not feel that there was a problem with this restaurant going in 
this location. 
 
Kim Antoine, 968 Vanderpool was present and stated that he lives directly adjacent to 
this location.  In the near future they are going to put a median on Rochester Road that 
will run past Long Lake Road and he does not believe there will be a hazard for children 
crossing the street.  Elementary school children go west into the subdivision and are not 
anywhere near Rochester Road.  Mr. Antoine said that he expects some noise, 
although the developer will be adding buffers.  Mr. Antoine is in favor of this request. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written objections on file.  There is one (1) written approval on file. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that because the variance goes with the land, he is concerned that 
someone other than Dunkin Donuts will come in and also be entitled to this variance. 
 
Mr. Hutson said this matter has been discussed regarding other locations and 
compared to other sites; this is a very small variance request. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how far they would be allowed to go back.  Mr. Grusnick said that the 
current required building envelope is 75’ from the rear property line and includes the 30’ 
E-P Zoning.  They cannot put any parking in the 30’ that is in the E-P Zoning. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they would meet the setback requirement without a drive-thru.  
Mr. Grusnick said that they would in fact meet the Ordinance requirements. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that he is impressed that they have moved the entrance from 
Vanderpool to Rochester Road in an attempt to buffer any noise or disturbance to the 
neighbors. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Marsha Butkovick of Jeffrey A. Scott Architects, P.C., 3339 
Rochester, (proposed address), relief of the Ordinance to construct a restaurant with a 
drive-up facility on a parcel of land that is only .96 acres in size where Section 21.30.02 
requires at least one acre; and also to have a 43’ front setback to the east property line 
where Section 30.20.05 requires a 75’ front yard setback.  
 

• Setback is being done for the convenience of the surrounding neighbors. 
• Variance request of .04 acres is minimal. 

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 

• Building to be constructed as shown in the plan presented to the Board. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JAE DUK CHO, OF ADA ARCHITECTS, 1304 E. 
MAPLE, for relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing industrial building, that will result 
with a parking lot on the north side of the building to within 10’ of the north property line 
and 21’-8” to the east property line.  Section 30.20.09 requires a 50’ front setback and 
Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that front yard remain free of parking and 
maneuvering lanes. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to alter 
an existing industrial building. The site plan submitted indicates the expansion of the 
parking lot on the north side of the building to within 10’ of the north property line along 
Maple Road and within 21’-8” of the east property line along Allen Drive.  Section 
30.20.09 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 50’ front setback in the M-1 (Light 
Industrial) Zoning District and Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that this front 
yard remain free of parking or maneuvering lanes. 
 
The parking lot along the east property line farther south on the lot is currently located 
21’-8” from the front property line along Allen Drive based upon a variance granted in 
1992. 
 
Dan Saleet, Partner and Architect of ADA Architects, and Jae Duk Cho, Project 
Manager for ADA Architects were present.  Mr. Saleet explained that Restaurant Depot 
is a wholesale distributor for restaurant operators and they currently have a location in 
Dearborn.  They sell food and restaurant equipment in bulk.  They are approximately 50 
franchise locations around the country.  This is a 52,000 square foot building and they 
plan to eliminate the front building along Maple.  Right now they have about 115 parking 
spaces, 97 of which are in the rear, but there is a four-bay truck dock back there that 
requires a lot of turning and stacking.  They plan to leave some of these spaces that will 
be utilized mainly for employee parking. 
 
Mr. Jae Cho stated that they plan to demolish the existing one-story building that is 
primarily office space and the connecting vestibule.  They want to put in a new parking 
lot for their customers and front parking is essential for convenience.  The parking at the 
rear of the building would be primarily for employees.  Restaurant Depot provides 
everything that a restaurant would need and is not open to the public.  A Tax I.D. is 
required for customers to purchase products from this store. 
 
 
 

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked how many parking spaces are required for a site this size.  Mr. 
Grusnick stated in M-1 Zoning, calculations for this space indicate that the parking 
requirement is for 115 spaces.  Mr. Hutson asked how many parking spaces are  
presently on this site.  Mr. Grusnick stated that presently there are 116 parking spaces 
available.  This count of parking spaces does not include the expansion at the front of 
the building. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how many spaces are proposed on this plan.  Mr. Cho stated that 
there are 165 parking spaces shown.  Mr. Courtney said that 115 are required, 116 are 
present and they are proposing 165 spaces.  Mr. Courtney asked why they need this 
many spaces.  Mr. Saleet said that they want a separation of drive, pedestrian access 
and employee parking and this is one of the reasons they want to put in this parking 
area.  Mr. Courtney asked why they need an additional 50 parking spaces.  Mr. Saleet 
said that it is for the convenience of the customer and to create a pleasant shopping 
experience.  They want to make it expedient for the customers to get in the store, shop 
and leave and want the parking as close to the entrance as possible. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked how many employees are at this location and Mr. Cho said that 
there are between 40 and 50 employees.  Mr. Courtney asked how many parking 
spaces would be along Allen.  Mr. Saleet said that there are approximately 51 parking 
spaces and Mr. Courtney asked how large the customer base was.  Mr. Cho said that 
they do a large volume of business and currently they are targeting parking at 150 
spaces.  They would like between 90 and 100 spaces for customers and 40 to 50 
spaces for employees. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he was having a hard time understanding why this much parking 
would be required.  The business is not open to the public and he cannot believe that 
they would require that many parking spaces for customers.  Mr. Saleet said that he 
thought there would be customers coming to this store within a 50-mile radius.  The 
Dearborn store is the first in Michigan and this will be the second location. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the entrance and exit are to the front of the building and suggested 
that they change the orientation of the entrance to the building to be along Allen.  This 
variance would be granted for the parking up front, and the side parking would go to 
waste because they are so far away.  Mr. Kovacs also said that he felt that changes 
could be made and if necessary the petitioner could come to the Board at a later date, 
once it has been established that extra parking would be required. 
 
Mr. Saleet said that there is a 5’ sidewalk to the east side of the property and they are 
planning to add a 10’ sidewalk.  Part of the parking spots would be lost right in the 
middle of the east side and inside there are coolers and freezers that have a connection 
with the truck docks and they need to be oriented to the southwest corner of the 
building.  If this entrance is changed it would result in a very poor layout for the interior 
of the store.  There is not as much wasted space with this configuration. 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Fejes asked why this site was chosen as the petitioner is asking for a large 
variance.  Mr. Saleet said that they were not in on the actual choice of the site.  Jeff 
Cavazos was present and helped Restaurant Depot in the selection of this site.  They 
had looked at two other sites south of fourteen mile and felt that they were too close to 
the Dearborn Store.  This site is the right size and configuration.  They need the extra 
parking as they try to separate the customers from the truck parking to increase safety 
for the customers.  They put up a canopy area for loading and unloading and if they had 
to put it on the east side of the building they would lose a number of parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked where the other stores were located.  Mr. Cavazos said that other 
than the Dearborn store, there are no other stores in Michigan.  They are in other 
locations such as Los Angeles, San Francisco, and Cleveland and in other parts of the 
country.  Mr. Courtney said that in his opinion this proposal sounds like a Sams Club or 
Costco.  Mr. Cavazos said that the general public cannot join this corporation.  You 
have to have a Tax I.D. stating that you are a restaurant business or a non-profit 
organization.  This is strictly a cash and carry business.  Mr. Cavazos said that they 
have pre-determined how many members they will have and although he cannot say for 
sure, he believes this location would have approximately 2,000 members to start with. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Hutson stated that in his opinion this site will be overbuilt and parking will intrude 
into the setback and he would like to keep space and greenery between the road and 
the building.  He does not believe there is a hardship that runs with the land and the site 
already provides a significant amount of parking. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that he also believes this variance request is quite large and does 
believe there are other alternatives available to the petitioner.  A very large variance 
was given to the Allen Road side of this property many years ago.  A 10’ setback along 
Maple is very small and there are no other buildings in this area with a 10’ setback for 
parking.  Mr. Maxwell said that he would like the petitioner to look at other options to 
determine if the variance request can be reduced. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the petitioner had any interest in going back and seeing if they 
could re-configure this site and then come back to the Board. 
 
Mr. Saleet said that they have thought about reducing the size of the variance but that 
would reduce the amount of parking and they really do need all of the parking they are 
requesting.  Mr. Saleet said that if they had thirty days they could look at everything that 
has been said to determine if they could make any other changes. 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he has listened to everything that has been said and needs more 
hard facts to back up this variance request.  In his opinion, convenience is not a 
hardship that runs with the land.  Mr. Kovacs really wants to see a reduction in the 
amount of parking along Maple or he wants to know exactly what reasons would require 
this much parking, other than convenience for the customers. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would rather not see the parking there, but once a need is 
shown they could come back to the Board and show why they need this much parking. 
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Jae Duk Cho, of ADA Architects, 1304 E. Maple, 
for relief of the Ordinance to alter an existing industrial building, that will result with a 
parking lot on the north side of the building to within 10’ of the north property line and 
21’-8” to the east property line until the meeting of October 17, 2006.  Section 30.20.09 
requires a 50’ front setback and Paragraph L of Section 31.30.00 requires that front 
yard remain free of parking and maneuvering lanes. 
 

• Variance request is very large. 
• Board would like to see alternative plans that would reduce the size of the 

variance request. 
• Board would like hard evidence that would support the need for the additional 

parking. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 
2006 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TED WAHL, 1659 ROCHESTER ROAD, for relief 
of the Ordinance to alter an existing industrial building that will result in a 5’ wide 
landscaped open space with a 3’ to 6’ high screen wall between a new parking lot 
where Section 30.20.09 requires a 50’ front yard free of parking or maneuvering lanes; 
2125 square feet of countable landscape where 4,466 square feet is required by 
Section 39.70.04; and, the proposed driveway on the north side of the building to be 
only 22’-6” wide where Section 40.25.03 requires that a two-way driveway adjacent to 
parking be a minimum of 24’ in width. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to alter 
an existing industrial building.  The plans submitted indicate a 5’ wide landscaped open 
space with a 3’ to 6’ high screen wall between a new parking lot and the west property 
line along Enterprise Drive where Section 30.20.09 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a 
50’ front yard, free of parking or maneuvering lanes. 

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
The plans further indicate only 2,125 square feet of countable landscape where Section 
39.70.04 requires 4,466 square feet of landscape for a site this size. 
 
In addition, plans show the width of the driveway on the north side of the building to be 
only 22’-6” wide where Section 40.25.03 requires that a two-way driveway adjacent to 
parking be a minimum of 24’ in width. 
 
John Vitale of Vitale Architects was present and stated that he was representing Ted 
Wahl.  Mr. Vitale said that they plan to renovate an existing building and have worked 
very hard with the City and tried to make this site work.  They have very tight restraints 
and they wish to put in a parking lot and allow access to this lot.  This would be an 
improvement to the property, which is presently a vacant lot.  Mr. Vitale said that they 
have tried to put in landscaping wherever they could and have attempted to preserve as 
many setbacks as they could and also have tried to soften the appearance of the wall. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that in his opinion this was a very difficult site. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Vitale stated that they have tried to be as sensitive as they could to develop 
landscaping around the entry way as it would be close to the Road.  The wall will not be 
on the property line so they could put vegetation in there to soften it.  At the request of 
the City, they have agreed to lower the wall and will add screening to it. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if parking spaces had been added.  Mr. Vitale said that the north 
parcel of property is vacant and this is where they plan to put their parking, which will 
meet the parking requirement.   Mr. Maxwell asked if they were going to add parking 
closer to Enterprise Road and Mr. Vitale said they were not but were going to develop 
the parcel to the north. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the parking requirements were going to be met with a multi tenant 
building and Mr. Vitale said that they would meet the requirements.  Mr. Courtney said 
that in his opinion this plan would be an improvement to what is there. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
 
 
 
 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Ted Wahl, 1659 Rochester Road, for relief of the Ordinance to alter 
an existing industrial building that will result in a 5’ wide landscaped open space with a 
3’ to 6’ high screen wall between a new parking lot where Section 30.20.09 requires a 
50’ front yard free of parking or maneuvering lanes; 2125 square feet of countable 
landscape where 4,466 square feet is required by Section 39.70.04; and, the proposed 
driveway on the north side of the building to be only 22’-6” wide where Section 40.25.03 
requires that a two-way driveway adjacent to parking be a minimum of 24’ in width. 
 

• Proposal offered by the petitioner is the best possible solution for this area. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance precludes full enjoyment of the permitted 

use of the property. 
• Lacking a variance conformance would be unnecessarily burdensome. 
•  A lesser variance would not give substantial relief as requested. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DANNA SIGNS, D.B.A. ISSI EAST COAST, 2155 
W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of the Ordinance to install a canopy structure over an 
automated teller machine resulting in a 17’ setback to the east property line, where 
Section 30.20.03 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum 30’ side yard setback 
line. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install 
a canopy structure over an automated teller machine (ATM) in the side yard of the 
existing Chase Bank.  Section 30.20.03 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum 
30’ side yard setback.  The site plan submitted indicates a 17’ setback to the east 
property line. 
 
Dan Booth, was present representing Danna Signs and stated that Chase Bank has 
taken over Bank One.  The existing ATM machine has a built in canopy and a new ATM 
machine is going to be installed, which will stand-alone and has a canopy that will 
accompany it.  Lighting will be built into the canopy and will help to provide a safer 
environment for users of the machine.  This new equipment will also require protection 
from the weather.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Fejes 
Supported by Wright 

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Danna Signs, D.B.A. ISSI East Coast, 2155 W. Big Beaver, relief of 
the Ordinance to install a canopy structure over an automated teller machine resulting in 
a 17’ setback to the east property line, where Section 30.20.03 of the Zoning Ordinance 
requires a minimum 30’ side yard setback line. 
  

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance applies only to the property described in this application. 
• Variance will not establish a prohibited use in a Zoning District. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #7 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JOE & MONICA GERHARDSTEIN, 2261 
KRISTIN, for relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition to their existing home that 
will result in a 41’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum 
rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition to their existing home.  The site plan submitted indicates a rear 
great room addition with a proposed 41’ rear yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 
45’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 
Joe Gerhardstein was present and stated that his property backs up to an elementary 
school on the south side and there is a 6’ fence that separates his property from the 
school property.  The fence extends the entire length of the lot.  There are six large 
trees that separate his property from the neighbor’s property to the west.  They are 
trying to develop a large play area for their growing family and do not believe this 
addition will encroach on any of the surrounding property.  They have looked at other 
construction that would be available to them, but wished to keep their variance request 
at a minimum.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Fejes 
 
 
 
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Joe & Monica Gerhardstein, 2261 Kristin, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition to their existing home that will result in a 41’ rear yard setback 
where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning 
District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an impact on any property in the vicinity. 
• The rear yard backs up to Schroeder School. 
• Variance request is very small. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  YEN CHEN, 4679 JOHN R., for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition at the rear of his home that would result in a 26’ rear 
yard setback, where Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the 
R-1C Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition at the rear of his existing home.  The site plan submitted indicates 
the proposed three-season enclosure will result in a 26’ rear yard setback.  Section 
30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1C Zoning District.  
 
Joe Fox, owner of Creations and Restoration was present and stated that they have 
done a number of renovations on this home to help Mr. and Mrs. Chen’s handicapped 
daughter.  Their daughter cannot tolerate bug bites and they would like to put up a 
three-season sunroom, so that she can come out there and feel like she is outside while 
being protected from insects.  They felt that a permanent structure would be more 
appealing to the surrounding neighbors.  There is a large patio at the back of the house 
and the sunroom will be about the same size as this patio. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the hardship is not with this property.  Mr. Fox said he is a little 
confused, but thought that the hardship is that they are short 14’.  Mr. Courtney 
explained what type of hardship is considered to be running with the land. 
 
Mr. Hutson gave examples such as a creek running through it, or an irregular shaped lot 
that would be considered a hardship. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the child is in an insect free environment when they use the motor 
home.  Mr. Fox said that she has to stay inside the motor home, but is used to facilitate 
them moving their child. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Chen was present and stated that her daughter cannot go outside because if she 
gets a bug bite the area swells up very large.  She likes to be out, but is prohibited from 
that because of her condition.  She has a special walker and this room would enable her 
to use it and feel like she was outside. 
 
Mr. Fox said that they have made a number of alterations to the home to make it 
convenient for them to take care of their daughter.  Because of these alterations they 
would not like to sell the home and move to another location. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are three (3) written objections on file.  There are no written approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the Board is very sympathetic with the petitioner, but a variance 
runs with the property and will be there whether or not the petitioner lives there.  This 
sunroom would be extremely close to the property behind this home and the variance 
request itself is very large.  The neighbor behind would not want to look out and see this 
sunroom encroaching into their property. 
 
Mr. Fox said that the driveway where the motor home is parked goes even further than 
the proposed sunroom.  Mr. Maxwell said that the motor home is not a permanent 
structure and could be moved.  This sunroom would be permanent and in his opinion 
would encroach on the property of the neighbor behind them. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they had looked at any other possibilities on the property.  Mr. 
Fox said that if this variance request was denied, he thought they could install a tongue 
and groove type deck, with a canvass awning and screens.  Mr. Courtney said that they 
could look at the other side of the garage.  Mr. Fox said that they would have to move 
the motor home and Mr. Courtney said that they would have to make a choice. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked if the second structure Mr. Fox described would require a variance 
and Mr. Grusnick said that it would. 
 
Mr. Hutson asked the petitioner if he would like some time to explore other possibilities 
and then come back to the Board.  Mr. Hutson said that he also feels this is a very large 
variance request and the petitioner may want to explore other possibilities.  Mr. Fox said 
that if this is denied, the Board would probably be more inclined to deny a deck.  Mr. 
Maxwell said that they are concerned about the size of the request. 
 
Mr. Fox asked that this petition be postponed for thirty days. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thought they could look at other ideas and perhaps move the 
motor home. 
 

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                   SEPTEMBER 19, 2006 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Yen Chen, 4679 John R.,  for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct an addition at the rear of his home that would result in a 26’ rear 
yard setback, where Section 30.10.04 requires a 40’ minimum rear yard setback in the 
R-1C Zoning District. 
 

• To give the petitioner the opportunity to explore other options. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 
2006 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:12 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Michael Hutson, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 15



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c







campbellld
Text Box
J-04a



10/16/06 PH ZOTA 226-Article IV and XXIV Med Equipment Sales  O-1 Dist
10/23/06 PH Prop. Estab. of IDD and IFEC -Grid4 Comm-2107 Crooks

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

October 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

November 2006October 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

October 1

2
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

3
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

4
8:30am BUILDING CODE 

BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

5 6 7

8

9 10
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11 12 13 14

15

16
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

17
3:00pm Brownfield 

Redevelopment  
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission (C

18
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

19 20 21

22

23
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

24
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

25 26 27 28

29

30 31

mccombca
Text Box
J-05



10/16/06 PH ZOTA 226-Article IV and XXIV Med Equipment Sales  O-1 Dist
10/23/06 PH Prop. Estab. of IDD and IFEC -Grid4 Comm-2107 Crooks

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

November 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

December 2006November 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
November 1

8:30am BUILDING CODE 
BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

2 3 4

5

6 7
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

8 9 10 11

12

13
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

14
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

16 17 18

19

20
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

21
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

22 23
City Hall Closed

Thanksgiving

24 25

26

27
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

28
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

29 30



10/16/06 PH ZOTA 226-Article IV and XXIV Med Equipment Sales  O-1 Dist
10/23/06 PH Prop. Estab. of IDD and IFEC -Grid4 Comm-2107 Crooks

S M T W T F S
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

December 2006
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

January 2007December 2006

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
December 1 2

3

4
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

5
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
(Council Boardroom)

6
8:30am BUILDING CODE 

BOARD OF APPEALS 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7 8 9

10

11 12
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

13 14 15 16

17

18
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

19
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

20
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

21 22
City Hall Closed

23

24

25
City Hall Closed

26 27 28 29
City Hall Closed

30

31



 
 
September 26, 2006 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance & Administration 
    Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Local Preference Issues 
 
Background: 
 
 There are many types of local preferences such as: 

1. Percentage Preferences:  The bid price of the local bidder is discounted by an established percentage. 
2. Tie Bid Preferences:  The contract award is approved for the local bidder in the event of a tie on all 

material aspects of the bid.  (A number of years ago, Council requested that City administration institute 
a non-formal policy that would break a tie bid if a local vendor was one of the bidders.  City 
administration agreed since the competitive bid process would not be compromised.  To date, a tie bid 
involving a local vendor has not been encountered.) 

3. General Preferences:  Preferences that can range from a tie bid preference to a relatively large 
percentage preference, based on the “best interest of the City”, the comparability of products and 
services offered, and the practicability of awarding or not awarding to a local bidder. 

4. Absolute Preferences:  Set aside purchases for local vendors. 
5. Reciprocal Preferences:  A preference to retaliate against other governments whose preferential 

policies adversely affect companies within the City. 
 
 City administration has maintained free and open competition and has consistently opposed local 

preferences for the following reasons: 
1. Most local preferences give local businesses an advantage compromising the integrity of the bid 

process.  Local preferences discourage competition that may result in not receiving the lowest price 
since out-city vendors perceive that they are not on equal footing with local businesses.   

2. Federal regulations prohibit expenditure of federal funds in this manner unless an exception is granted. 
3. A certification program would need to be implemented to determine and verify local vendor status.  It is 

extremely difficult to establish effective criteria for the determination of a “local vendor”.  Verification 
issues include length of residency, home office affiliation, permanent business location, actual services 
provided in the locality (i.e. branch offices and warehouses), residential location of workers and owners, 
property ownership within the City, etc.  

4. Bid award timetables would be lengthened to validate a bidder’s status. 
5. Implementation of a local preference policy can result in a higher number of bid protests and could lead 

to litigation causing increased administrative costs.  
 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



Financial Considerations: 
 
 Most local preferences essentially give a tax break to the local company using taxpayers’ money.  If 

providing a local business with a subsidy is the intention, there are better, more direct and open ways to do 
it. 

 Direct and administrative cost savings derived from participation in the many Purchasing Cooperative 
Programs would cease.  We currently purchase computer equipment, software, carpeting, tires, gasoline, 
vehicles, office supplies, hardware items, to name just a few items through Cooperative Programs. 

 Competitive bidding is the goal of the bid process, and therefore, prices can be expected to rise if local 
preferences are enacted since preferences can restrict competition. 

 It is difficult to keep costs from increasing where there is little or no competition within a jurisdiction such as 
Troy due to the geographic size and the limited number of competing businesses. 

 Increased administrative costs would result due to the verification and registration activities.   
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Charter, Chapter 12, Purchases – Contracts – Leases, Section 12.1 – Purchase and Sale of Property 

states: “Purchases shall be made from the lowest competent bidder meeting specifications, unless the 
Council shall determine that the public interest will be better served by accepting a higher bid, sales shall 
be made to the bidder whose bid is most advantageous to the City.”   

 
To be in compliance with the Charter, City Council would have to approve an award to a local bidder and 
designate the bid as most advantageous to the City by determining that the public interest would be better 
served by spending more money by taking the higher local bid.  

 
 City Code, Chapter 7 – Purchases, Contracts and Sales, Section (5) states:  “…it (Council) shall award the 

contract to the lowest competent bidder meeting specifications, unless the Council shall determine that the 
public interest will be better served by accepting a higher bid.” 

 
To be in compliance with the City Code, City Council would have to approve an award to a local bidder and 
designate that the public interest would be better served by spending more money by taking the higher 
local bid.  

  
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Local preference is in direct conflict with Goal I (Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government).    
 Purchasing maintains an open door policy for the City’s vendors.  (Goal III) 
 The MITN website allows 24-hour access to City bids, awards and tabulations.  The system has proved to 

be a more reliable and timely mechanism for obtaining documents.  Vendors are able to manage their 
accounts and commodity matches.  Approximately 4,797 vendors have registered on the MITN system 
where 23 entities now post their competitive processes.  Troy has posted 296 formal bids and quotations 
on this website.   (Goal III) 

 More vendors now have access to the City’s bid processes.  For example, in December 2004 street trees 
were posted with two (2) vendors responding.  Recently, the 2007 bid for street trees resulted in seven (7) 
bids being received or triple the 2004 number of responses.  (Goal I) 

 
Options: 
 
 No change recommended 



TO: The Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: September 27, 2006 

  
  

SUBJECT: Papadelis v Troy 
 

 

 
In a previous case between Troy and the Papadelis Family (Telly’s Nursery), the Michigan 

Court of Appeals ruled the southern parcel (3305 John R Road) could be used as a nursery 
business, since it was allegedly used as a nursery prior to the adoption of the zoning classification in 
1955.  The Court of Appeals limited the commercial use to the southern parcel, and explicitly 
prohibited expansion to the northern parcel, 3301 John R. Road, which was also owned by the 
Papadelis family.  The northern parcel was required to remain consistent with the residential zoning 
classification of the property.  However, since the time of the first Court of Appeals opinion, the 
Papadelis family has continued to use the north parcel for their nursery business, on the basis such 
use was a permitted agricultural use.  This use has continuously expanded, resulting in litigation.      
 

In the most recent case before the Michigan Court of Appeals, the Papadelis family argued 
that the expansion of the nursery to the north parcel was permitted under the current version of the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act, which was amended in 1999.  This intervening amendment to the state 
statute was not controlling in the earlier Papadelis v. City of Troy lawsuit, but it was dispositive to this 
opinion.  In footnote 1, the Michigan Court of Appeals opines:    
  

We are aware that, under MCL 269.473 (1) (the Right to Farm Act), a business could 
conceivably move into an established residential neighborhood and start a farm or 
farm operation in contravention of local zoning ordinances as long as the farm or 
farm operation conforms to generally accepted agricultural and management 
practices.  Although we might personally disagree with the wisdom of the policy 
choice codified under MCL 286.473 (1), we are without the authority to override the 
clearly expressed intent of the Legislature.  MCL 286.473 (1) is simply not ambiguous 
and, therefore, must be enforced as written.   

 
In the attached unpublished opinion, the Michigan Court of Appeals found that Telly’s 

Nursery and Greenhouse is a “farm,” as defined under current state law, and therefore the entire 
operation is entitled to the protections of the Right to Farm Act (MCL 269.473).  This is true, even 
though the expansion to the north parcel has only recently occurred.     
 

Although the City was not successful in its efforts to limit the expansion of the business in a 
residential district, the City was victorious in obtaining a dismissal of the claims brought against the 
City and individual employees.  The Court of Appeals dismissed the Papadelis’ claims that Troy 
allegedly violated their constitutional rights, which was brought under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983 as a 
claim for damages.  Under this section, a Plaintiff who succeeds in recovering even one dollar in 
damages would also be awarded all attorney fees and costs incurred in the pursuit of the lawsuit.  
Since the Court has dismissed these allegations against the City, this effectively precludes the 
Papadelis family from recovering damages or attorney fees against the City.   
 

Please let us know if you have any questions regarding this matter. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07
























	AGENDA: October 2, 2006
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1  No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Ex�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�

	E-5 Request for Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water
	E-6 Subcontract No. 06-5417/S1 with Greenstar & Associates, 
	E-7 Subcontract No. 06-5418/S1 with Greenstar & Associates, 
	E-8 Private Agreement for 5660 New King Street Project No. 0
	E-9 Proposed Co-location on Sylvan Glen Communications Tower

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) b) City Council Appointments: Ethnic Issues Advisory Board; Historic

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 226) – Ar
	Proposed Establishment of an Industrial Development District

	G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1   No Council Comments

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Parks and Recreation Advisory Board/Final – May 18, 2006
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – September 6, 2006
	Planning Commission/Draft – September 12, 2006
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – September 19, 2006

	J-2 Department Reports: None Submitted
	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to City Manager from Peter Clarkson of Ice 
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Robert Leman Shelby Tow
	Letter of Appreciation to City Manager and City Council from

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	Resolution from the City of Orchard Lake Village Opposing th

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from Purchasing Director Jeanette Bennett
	J-7  Communication from the City Attorney’s Office Regarding

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



